
 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Agenda (August 13, 2015) Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

August 13, 2015 7:00 PM  

NEWBERG PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING   

401 EAST THIRD STREET 

 
 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

III.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (5-minute maximum per person – for items not on the agenda) 

 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR (items are considered routine and are not discussed unless requested by the 

commissioners) 

 1. Approval of June 11 and June 25, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

V. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING (complete registration form to give testimony - 5 minute 

maximum per person except for principals, unless otherwise set by majority motion of the Planning 

Commission).  No new public hearings after 10 p.m. except by majority vote of the Planning 

Commissioners. 
 

1. APPLICANT: Leonard Johnson (contact – Mart Storm) (continued from 6/25/15) 

  REQUEST: Highlands at Hess Creek phases 4 & 5 - Subdivision tentative plan approval. 

  LOCATION: South end of Kennedy Drive and Corrine Drive 

  TAX LOT: 3220-1400 

  FILE NO.:  SUB3-15-001  ORDER NO.: 2015-18 

  CRITERIA: Newberg Development Code Section 15.235.060(A) 

 

2. APPLICANT: ProLand LLC (representing Verizon Wireless) 

REQUEST: Appealed to Planning Commission – Design review/variance approval for a 70- 

foot tall cellular communications tower, with reduced setback requirement. 

LOCATION: 2401 E. Hancock Street 

TAX LOT: 3220AB-202 

FILE NO.: DR2-15-003/VAR-15-001 ORDER NO.: 2015-19 

CRITERIA: Newberg Development Code Section 15.220.050(B), 15.445.190, 15.215.040 

 

VI. LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS (complete registration form to give testimony - 5 minute 

maximum per person, unless otherwise set by majority motion of the Planning Commission)  

   

 1. DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT: Temporary and Portable signs 

  The proposal:  

1. Adds a new section for a temporary sign permit program that will allow additional 

temporary and portable signs on private property in the C-2, C3, and Institutional zones.   

2. Adds new language to address the use of pennants, streamers, and inflatable objects. 

3. Adds new language to clarify the definition of a flag display and flag use on holidays.  

4. Modifies existing sign code language to clarify the intent of the code.  

5. Allows additional signs in the public right-of-way.  

  FILE NO.: DCA-14-001 RESOLUTION NO.: 2014-308 

   
    

1/332 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Agenda (August 13, 2015) Page 2 of 2 

VII. ITEMS FROM STAFF 

1. Update on Council items 

2. Other reports, letters or correspondence 

3. Next Planning Commission meeting: September 10, 2015  
 

VIII. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 

FOR QUESTIONS PLEASE STOP BY, OR CALL 503-537-1240, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPT. – P.O. BOX 970 – 414 E. FIRST 

STREET 
 

ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 

Recorder’s Office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible as and no later 

than 48 business hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the City Recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services 

please dial 711. 

2/332 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (June 11, 2015)  Page 1 of 4 

NEWBERG PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

June 11, 2015, 7:00 PM 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING (401 E. THIRD STREET) 
 

 

 Chair Gary Bliss called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

 

ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Gary Bliss, Chair Philip Smith Jason Dale  

 Matthew Fortner Allyn Edwards Cathy Stuhr 

   Luis Saavedra/student   

 

Members Absent: Art Smith excused    

 

Staff Present: Steve Olson, Associate Planner  

 Doug Rux, Community Development Director 

 Bobbie Morgan, Planning Secretary 

 Kaaren Hoffman, City Engineer 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None. 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR:  PC Philip Smith said there was an error in last month’s meeting minutes on page 3.  

The comments he made were attributed to Commissioner Art Smith and should be corrected to his name. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Philip Smith moved to adopt the meeting minutes for May 14, 2015, as amended.  

Seconded by Commissioner Cathy Stuhr and passed 6-0. 

 

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING: 

 

APPLICANT: DJ2 Holdings, LLC 

REQUEST: Comprehensive Plan map amendment from LDR (low density residential) to 

HDR (high density residential), with corresponding Zoning map amendment from R-1 to R-3. 

LOCATION: 1317 Villa Road  

TAX LOT: 3217BC-800 FILE NO.: CPA-15-001/ZMA3-15-001  

RESOLUTION NO.: 2015-307  

CRITERIA: Newberg Development Code 15.302.030(A) (3), applicable Comprehensive Plan goals and 

policies 

 

Chair Gary Bliss reopened the hearing at 7:05 p.m.  He asked if any Commissioner had ex parte contact to 

declare since the last hearing.  There was none.  

 

The public testimony portion of the hearing was closed at the meeting on May 14, 2015, and the hearing would 

be continued at the point of deliberation. 

 

Final Comments from Staff and recommendation: 

 

AP Steve Olson commented the resolution was updated with the current date, but the contents were the same.  

Staff recommended adoption of the resolution which included the findings that stated the proposal met the 

Development Code criteria and applicable Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies. 

 

3/332 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (June 11, 2015)  Page 2 of 4 

PC Cathy Stuhr asked for clarification on page 466 & 467 of the packet regarding the State Transportation 

Planning Rule.  She questioned if the application met Criteria C as it worsened the performance of an 

intersection, but the report said it would not significantly affect the transportation system.   

 

AP Steve Olson replied ODOT’s analysis said it was at acceptable levels and did not significantly affect the 

transportation system.  They were relying on ODOT’s interpretation and analysis, and agreed with it. 

 

Chair Gary Bliss asked about the City’s project on Villa Road.  The design of the half street in front of this 

project might put a height differential in the southbound and northbound lanes.  Was there adequate room for 

the road and sidewalks?   

 

CE Kaaren Hoffman explained construction would begin in 2016.  The design was not done yet to know what 

the differential would be, or how it would be addressed.  There would be bicycle and pedestrian connectivity, 

but she did not know if they would be on both sides of the road or only one side. 

 

Planning Commission Deliberation including discussion of criteria with findings of fact: 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Philip Smith moved to adopt Resolution No. 2015-307 as prepared by staff.  

Commissioner Allyn Edwards seconded the motion. 

 

PC Phillip Smith said the proposal was to rezone from R-1 to R-3.  Improvements were needed and the 

developer would have to pay for the improvements.  There was a need for R-3 land.  The location was good and 

fit the City’s adopted plan to spread R-3 through the City and not concentrate it in one area.  The owner of the 

land wanted to develop this way to meet the City’s needs.  It did bring change to the neighborhood and the Code 

protected what could be put on the property.  The neighbors were concerned that R-3 would be too much, but 

design review would get into the details which was not this current stage.  There was also concern about safety, 

especially regarding traffic and pedestrian access on Villa Road.  The main complaint was due to the train 

trestle, hill, and curve on Villa Road and testimony stated it presented an unsolvable problem.  He did not agree 

that it was unsolvable, as good engineering could significantly improve the road.  He especially wanted to see a 

street design that addressed pedestrian, vehicle, and bicycle safety.  He planned to vote in favor of the zone 

change. 

 

PC Cathy Stuhr agreed traffic was the most important issue and there was a need for higher density land.  They 

heard loud and clear that traffic was already a bad situation and this project would likely worsen it.  It would 

also make it worse around George Fox.  She questioned if the application met the State Transportation Planning 

Rule and she thought it was possible to interpret that it did not.  She was concerned about the issues of parking 

and speeding that to date had not been solved.  She was also concerned that there was adequate infrastructure to 

serve the site.  It was not efficient to put the highest possible density in an area that already had significant 

pedestrian and bike traffic issues and unique characteristics.  There were significant challenges to remedy the 

existing conflicts that would be exacerbated by this project. 

 

PC Allyn Edwards commented it had been determined that there was a need for high density housing.  The type 

of housing could be controlled through the design review process.  The type of housing could also reduce the 

concerns of traffic, such as condominiums or permanent housing that catered to families.  He asked if the 

sidewalks could be built around the trestle rather than through it.   

 

City Engineer Kaaren Hoffman answered it was a possibility.  The design would be completed in the fall/winter 

of 2015. 

 

PC Allyn Edwards thought there was a need and it was a matter of how the design review would be presented. 

 

4/332 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (June 11, 2015)  Page 3 of 4 

Student Luis Saavedra said it all depended on how it was designed. 

 

PC Matthew Fortner was most concerned about safety.  If they disregarded the warnings, it could be a problem 

in the future.  It was originally zoned R-1 for a reason.  There were other properties in the City that could be 

converted to R-3.   

 

PC Phillip Smith discussed the definition of “significantly affect” and agreed with Commissioner Stuhr that this 

project significantly affected the transportation system and needed to be mitigated.  The real problem with Villa 

Road was not this project but the larger development that would happen in the future on the north side of 

Mountain View.  He thought it met the definition and they could ask for mitigation.  He did not think it could be 

denied on that basis since it met City goals, served City interest, and was what the owner of the property wanted 

to do. 

 

Chair Gary Bliss had looked over the criteria for the zone change.  There was a shortage of high density 

residential.  It provided diversity in housing.  Public services could reasonably be made available.  The sewer 

issue could be addressed during design review.  The City was going to make improvements to Villa Road.  

Approving the rezoning was not approving the development.  Conditions could be made on the development if 

needed.  He thought it was in compliance with the State Transportation Planning Rule, it met the objective of 

the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Development Code, there was a public need, it was adjacent to a major 

collector, and it provided an adequate supply of rental properties.  The City and developer needed to work 

together to come up with a plan where it could be done concurrently.  He was ready to vote in favor of the 

motion. 

 

PC Cathy Stuhr asked if they were comfortable with the findings to support the decision.  There had been many 

comments made that the future road plan was going to address all of the concerns that had been raised.   

 

AP Steve Olson said they did not have any more information to add, as the Villa road improvement design was 

not complete.    

 

Chair Gary Bliss said in order to make a right in, right out work on Villa Road they needed a median as people 

ignored signs.  There needed to be a barrier. 

 

PC Jason Dale thought whether this was developed as R-1 or R-3, the roadway would be designed the same.  

The only difference was the volume of the traffic based upon the extra residents, but he did not think it was a 

significant difference.  He thought it should be approved. 

 

Motion passed 5-1-1 with PC Cathy Stuhr opposed and PC Art Smith absent. 

 

 

AP Steve Olson said the next step in the process was sending the recommendation to the City Council which 

was scheduled for July 6. 

 

ITEMS FROM STAFF:   
 

CD Doug Rux reviewed the staff report he presented to the Council at the last Council meeting and stated the 

Affordable Housing Commission had developed a set of recommendations on the Affordable Housing Trust 

Fund that would go to the Council on June 15.  Staff was continuing to have discussions regarding the 

Crestview Crossing project. 

 

ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS:   

 

5/332 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (June 11, 2015)  Page 4 of 4 

PC Allyn Edwards commented on staff’s proactive role with the community.   

 

CD Doug Rux said he, the City Manager, and staff were discussing meeting with people who had done 

developments in Newberg in the past to get their perspective for what the issues were and what needed to be 

adjusted.  They were also looking at improving internal processes and staff reports to make things more user 

friendly and transparent. 

 

PC Allyn Edwards thanked him for the efforts being made. 

 

Chair Gary Bliss adjourned the meeting at 7:55 p.m.  

 

Approved by the Newberg Planning Commission this ____ day of ___________, 2015. 
 

 

_______________________________  _____________________________ 

 Bobbie Morgan, Planning Secretary              Gary Bliss, Planning Commission Chair 

 

 

 

6/332 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (June 25, 2015)  Page 1 of 4 

NEWBERG PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

June 25, 2015, 7:00 PM 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING (401 E. THIRD STREET) 
 

 

 Chair Gary Bliss called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

 

ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Gary Bliss, Chair Jason Dale  

 Allyn Edwards Cathy Stuhr   

 Art Smith   

 

Members Absent: Luis Saavedra/student  

 Philip Smith 

 Matthew Fortner  

  

Staff Present: Steve Olson, Associate Planner  

 Doug Rux, Community Development Director 

 Bobbie Morgan, Planning Secretary 

 Jason Wuertz, Engineering 

 Jacque Betz, City Manager 

  

PUBLIC COMMENTS:   

None 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR:   

None 

 

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING:  

 

APPLICANT: Leonard Johnson (contact – Mart Storm) 

 Request: Highlands at Hess Creek Phases 4 & 5 – subdivision tentative plan approval. 

 Location: South end of Kennedy Drive and Corrine Drive 

 Tax Lot: 3220-1400 

 File Number: SUB3-15-001 

 Criteria: Newberg Development Code Section 15.235.060(A) 

 

Chair Gary Bliss opened the hearing at 7:05 p.m. and read the quasi-judicial hearing process.  He asked if there 

were any abstentions, bias, or ex parte contacts to declare.  There were none. 

 

Staff Report:  AP Steve Olson presented the staff report.  This application was for a 27 lot subdivision for 

single family homes.  It was located at the south end of Kennedy Drive and Corrine Drive and was zoned R-2.  

He showed pictures of the site, including the stream corridor and surrounding properties.  Access to the site 

would be from Kennedy and Corrine Drives and the whole neighborhood was accessed from 1st Street and 

Highway 219.  Some safety improvements were planned for Highway 219 and 2nd and a traffic signal at 

Highway 219 and Everest.  The improvements would be completed by ODOT and the City as part of the TSP.  

For utilities, there was a water line that would be extended through Kennedy and a storm water detention pond 

constructed in an earlier phase would be used for this development.  There would also be street improvements 

made during Phase 4.  There was a 40 foot wide tract to provide access and a sanitary sewer easement to the 

south.  The stream corridor was a zoning overlay.  He reviewed the criteria for a subdivision.  The issues to be 

addressed for the stream corridor tract were the plan had to show who would own the property, how it would 

7/332 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (June 25, 2015)  Page 2 of 4 

have access, and clarify it was a tract.  The 40 foot wide tract with an access easement to the south would 

provide access to the CPRD property.  Newberg did not allow private streets, so the two options were to either 

extend the public street to the south or to extend a driveway.  Per Code, driveways could only serve three lots 

and they did not know how the property would be developed in the future. One criteria of the subdivision was it 

could not adversely affect the development of adjoining land. The access easement did put a constraint on it.  

The only way it would not put a constraint was putting in a street stub.  The condition of approval was to 

replace the tract with a public right-of-way and a street stub.  The intent of the CF zone was for parks and open 

space, but there were a variety of uses that could potentially be on the site.  The subdivision complied with 

Code standards.  In R-2 the minimum lot sizes were 3,000 square feet, and the applicant was proposing around 

5,000 square feet.  The lots had to have 25 feet of frontage and be 30 feet wide at the front building line, and 

almost all the lots were 50 feet wide.  The water and sanitary sewer line needed to be extended to the south, 

which would be a condition of approval. Condition 1b regarding the stormwater extension needed to be 

removed as the property to the south’s elevation dropped off to the south and there were other stormwater 

options for the area.  The last condition was that improvements had to be completed prior to final plat approval.  

Staff recommended approval with conditions. 

 

Public Testimony 

Proponents: 

 

Mart Storm, applicant, stated this was the final application for a subdivision started in 2006.  The usable lots 

were in the 5,000 square foot range which was consistent with the other lots in the area.  It was completing a 

project that would be consistent with everything that was already there.  The historic storm water flow off the 

park always went to the south and it would not accomplish anything to stub a storm drain into it.  The 

stormwater facility was sized and designed to facilitate the historic flow to the subdivision, but not to the south.  

There were two manholes adjacent to the park on the sewer system that the park had access to through an 

easement and he hoped he would not have to stub a third sewer stub to it if a street was put on the east side.  

Regarding access to the park, his attorney had proposed a compromise.  He further explained the 15 foot utility 

easement and available manholes adjacent to the park. He thought they would extend Corrine to the park 

property, but he could put in on Kennedy as well.  He had negotiated the ownership of the stream corridor with 

CPRD as he wanted to keep it for potential density transfers until the subdivision was done so he could transfer 

density if needed.  He had an agreement with CPRD that he would give the stream corridor back to them as a 

charitable contribution when he was done.  It would ultimately be attached to the park. 

 

Matt Willcuts had no comments. 

 

Opponents: 

Joe Darbey was representing the Darbey Family Trust, property owner to the east of this development.  He had 

been in discussion with Mr. Storm on protecting an easement for sewer that was done in 2007.  He would like to 

see on a map where the easement was located.   

 

Don Clements, Superintendent of Chehalem Park and Recreation District, explained the reason they wanted 

access to the CPRD property was it was labeled as surplus property and could potentially be sold.  If they did 

decide to sell the property, they would come back to the Planning Commission for a zone change.  The only 

concern they had was to make sure they had access to the property for future development.  There was intent to 

put a neighborhood park there, but they were trying to keep the options open. 

 

AP Steve Olson presented a 10 page letter that came in from Andrew Stamp, the attorney representing the 

applicant. 

 

8/332 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (June 25, 2015)  Page 3 of 4 

PC Allyn Edwards asked the applicant if it was possible to save Lot 95 if there was a single lane in and a single 

lane out of the subdivision.  Mr. Storm thought it would work for park access, but not for a subdivision access.  

The subdivision street width needed to be 54 feet to be a public street. 

  

PC Art Smith said the greatest likelihood was the CPRD property would be a park.  Mr. Storm said it was zoned 

to be a park and he thought at least a portion would be a park.  The question came down to did they build a 100 

feet of public street now or something that would better fit a park or build nothing. 

 

Chair Gary Bliss recessed the meeting for a five minute break to read the letter submitted by the applicant’s 

attorney. 

 

After reconvening the meeting, Chair Gary Bliss asked if testimony needed to be submitted a week before the 

meeting. 

 

AP Steve Olson said that was part of the Planning Commission’s rules but they could vote to accept the 

testimony.  He then commented on the letter.  One point that was brought up was Phase 1 and 2 divided two-

thirds of the property and the applicant did show a concept plan for a third phase with a loop road.  There was 

no approval of the future street plan.  Only the streets in Phase 1 and 2 were approved and there was no binding 

future street plan based on those phases.  Based on Mr. Darbey’s earlier testimony, he asked the applicant to 

clarify how the southwest corner access and maintenance would work.  The letter referenced Dolan vs. the City 

of Tigard and the need for findings on the conditions.  These were points not raised before, and the findings 

would need to be modified.  He suggested continuing the hearing for staff to modify the findings.   

 

CD Doug Rux said another new piece of testimony was provided by Mr. Clements about the potential surplus of 

property and that the intent was to build a neighborhood park.  The findings would need to reflect that 

information as well. 

 

PC Cathy Stuhr stated the letter indicated Mr. Storm was not in favor of building the road.  Mr. Storm 

responded that he was fine with dedicating the right-of-way, but not constructing the street.  A park needed less 

access than a public street.  They did not want to build a full public street if all that was going to be on the 

property was a park. 

 

PC Art Smith thought the decision the Commission had to make was based on their best knowledge of what was 

now and there was a lot of speculation on what might be. 

 

Chair Gary Bliss asked Mr. Clements about his discussions with the applicant.  Mr. Clements said he had not 

been contacted by the applicant.    

 

PC Allyn Edwards said the objective was to determine if this was a good land use for the applicant, and he 

thought the issues had been addressed.  He thought the letter submitted by the attorney was irrelevant. 

 

AP Steve Olson asked for clarification on the Darbey easement.  CD Doug Rux explained the situation further, 

and that the issue was placing a private and public easement on top of each other. 

 

Mr. Storm explained public utility easements and private access easements overlapped regularly.  The private 

access allowed the Darbeys access to the other side of the stream, which was a 25 foot easement. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Jason Dale moved to continue the hearing for SUB3-15-001 to August 13, 2015, at 7:00 

p.m.  Seconded by Commissioner Art Smith and passed 4-0-1 (with PC Allyn Edwards abstaining). 

 

ITEMS FROM STAFF:   

9/332 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (June 25, 2015)  Page 4 of 4 

None 

 

ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS:   

 

Chair Gary Bliss commented on a winery who was thinking of pairing marijuana with wine.  CD Doug Rux had 

not heard anything about that. 

 

PC Cathy Stuhr suggested a future discussion on phased subdivisions and cumulative traffic impacts. 

 

PC Allyn Edwards asked that staff try to make sure any easements be researched on applications.  CD Doug 

Rux said staff was continuing to work on it. 

 

Chair Gary Bliss asked AP Steve Olson that a new map with all of these issues be submitted by the applicant. 

 

 

Chair Gary Bliss adjourned the meeting at 8:36 p.m.  

 

Approved by the Newberg Planning Commission this ____ day of ___________, 2015. 
 

 

_______________________________  _____________________________ 

 Bobbie Morgan, Planning Secretary              Gary Bliss, Planning Commission Chair 

 

 

 

10/332 



Exhibit “2” 
To Planning Commission Rules 

 

 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Rules & Guidelines                                   Page 18 

OUTLINE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
Newberg Planning Commission 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING, ANNOUNCE THE PURPOSE, DISCUSS TESTIMONY 
PROCEDURE, AND TIME ALLOTMENTS 

 
2.    CALL FOR ABSTENTIONS, BIAS, EX PARTE CONTACT, AND OBJECTIONS TO 

JURISDICTION  
 
3. LEGAL ANNOUNCEMENT 
 READ “QUASI-JUDICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS” SHEET 
 
4. STAFF REPORT 
 COMMISSION MAY ASK BRIEF QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION 

   
5. PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT PER SPEAKER (15 MINUTE LIMIT FOR APPLICANT AND 
PRINCIPAL OPPONENT).  SPEAKER GOES TO WITNESS TABLE, STATES NAME & 
PRESENTS TESTIMONY.  COMMISSION MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF SPEAKERS. 
 A. APPLICANT(S) 
 B. OTHER PROPONENTS                 
 C. OPPONENTS AND UNDECIDED 
 D. STAFF READS WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE (TIME LIMIT APPLIES)  
 E. APPLICANT REBUTTAL 
 
6 CLOSE OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF HEARING 
 
7.  FINAL COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND RECOMMENDATION  
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION DELIBERATION INCLUDING DISCUSSION OF CRITERIA 

WITH FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
9. ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMMISSION 
 A. ORDER OR RESOLUTION – Usually requires passage of order if the 

commission is the final decision maker, or a resolution if the commission is only 
advisory to the council. 

 B. VOTE – Vote is done by roll call. 
C. COMBINATION – Can be combined with other commission action; separate vote 

on each action is required. 

11/332 



 

QUASI-JUDICIAL 

 PUBLIC HEARING PROCESS 

 TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE REQUIREMENTS 

  
 

ORS 197.763 requires certain statements to be made at the commencement of a public hearing. 

 

• The applicable City and State zoning criteria must be listed.  This means that we must advise you of 

the standards that must be satisfied by the applicant prior to our approval of an application.  The 

Planning Staff will list the applicable criteria during his or her presentation of the staff report. 

 

• Persons wishing to participate in this hearing must direct their testimony or the evidence toward the 

criteria stated by the Planner or other specific City or State criteria which you believe apply.  You 

must tell us why the testimony or evidence relates to the criteria. 

 

• Any issue which might be raised in an appeal of this case to the Land Use Board of Appeals 

(LUBA) must be raised in person or by letter at the local level prior to the City approving or 

denying the application.  The law states that the issue must be raised in enough detail to afford the 

decision-maker and the parties an opportunity to respond.  This part of the law is also known as the 

"raise it or waive it" requirement.  If you do not bring it up now, you can't bring it up at LUBA. 

 

• Failure of the applicant to raise constitutional or other issues relating to proposed conditions of 

approval in enough detail to allow the local government or its designee to respond to the issue 

precludes an action for damages in Circuit Court. 

 

•  Prior to the conclusion of the initial evidentiary hearing on an application, any participant may 

request an opportunity to present additional evidence or testimony regarding the application.  The 

Planning Commission will grant such a request through a continuance or extension of the record. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

12/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

Community Development Department 
P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

  

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

Highlands at Hess Creek Phases 4 & 5 

 Subdivision Tentative Plan application 
 

FILE NUMBER:  SUB3-15-001 

REQUEST:   Approval for a Subdivision tentative plan to divide a 10.94 acre parcel into 27 lots for 
single-family detached homes. The applicant submitted a revised subdivision plan on 
7/31/15 to address transportation and access issues. 

APPLICANT:  Leonard Johnson (contact – Mart Storm) 
 
OWNER:  Leonard Johnson 
 
LOCATION:  The south end of Corinne Drive and Kennedy Drive, tax lot 3220-1400 

DESIGNATION: Comprehensive Plan designation of MDR (Medium Density Residential); Zoning 
designation of R-2 (Medium Density Residential), with a Stream Corridor overlay on 
approximately half the parcel.  

CODE CRITERIA: Newberg Development Code § 15.235.060(A) 

HEARING DATE: Planning Commission Hearing – August 13, 2015 (continued from June 25, 2015) 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Planning Commission Order 2015-18 with:  
Exhibit A: Findings 
Exhibit B: Conditions of approval 
Exhibit C: Tentative plan 

1. Aerial photo with zoning 
2. Public & Agency Comments 
3. Revised Subdivision drawings 7.31.15 
4. Original Application 
5. Newberg Development Code & Comprehensive Plan 

(by reference) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

Location Map: tax lot 3220-1400 

 

 

Proposal 
The applicant has requested a Subdivision tentative plan approval for Highlands at Hess Creek phases 4 and 5. 

The application would divide a 10.94 acre site into 27 lots for single-family detached homes. Part of the site is in 

the Stream Corridor overlay zone, which requires that the subdivision application be reviewed by the Planning 

Commission. The applicant submitted a revised subdivision plan on 7/31/15 to address transportation and 

access issues. 

Process 
This is a Type III application for a Subdivision tentative plan. This will be a quasi-judicial hearing, and after taking 

public testimony the Planning Commission will make a decision on the application based on the criteria listed in 

the attached findings.  

14/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

Noticing: Important dates related to this application are:  

1. 6/10/15:  The Community Development Director deemed the application complete. 

2. 6/4/15:   The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 500 feet of the site. 

3. 6/10/15:  The applicant posted notice on the site. 

4. 6/10/15:  The Newberg Graphic published notice of the Planning Commission hearing. 

5. 6/25/15:  The Planning Commission held a quasi-judicial hearing to consider the      

   application, and continued the hearing to 8/13/15. 

6. 8/13/15  The Planning Commission will continue the hearing to consider the application. 

 

Criteria: The following criteria apply to the subject proposal:  
15.235.060 Subdivision requirements – Type II and Type III. 

A. The director (Type II) or planning commission (Type III) shall approve a subdivision of four parcels or more 

under a Type II or Type III procedure if the resulting parcels comply with the following approval criteria: 

1. Approval does not impede the future best use of the remainder of the property under the same 

ownership or adversely affect the safe and healthful development of such remainder or adjoining land 

or access thereto. 

2. The subdivision complies with this code including but not limited to NMC 15.340.010 through 

15.440.080 and NMC 15.235.030 et seq. 

3. Either: 

a. Improvements required to be completed prior to final plat approval; or 

b. The subdivider will substantially complete, as defined by city policies, required 

improvements prior to final plat approval, and enter into a performance agreement to 

complete the remaining improvements. The performance agreement shall include security in a 

form acceptable to the city in sufficient amount to insure completion of all required 

improvements; or 

c. A local improvement district shall have been formed to complete the required 

improvements; or 

d. The required improvements are contained in a city or other government agency capital 

improvement project that is budgeted and scheduled for construction. 

 

Site Information 
The site is located south of Highlands at Hess Creek Phases 1-3, and is at the end of Kennedy and Corrine Drives. 

It is currently a flat empty field with a small Stream Corridor overlay on the western edge of the property and a 

large Stream Corridor overlay on the southeast part of the site. There are many mature trees in the stream 

corridor. 

Surrounding uses:  

 North: Single family homes, R-2 (medium density residential) zoning. 

 East: A wide stream corridor, then the airport.  

 West: A wide stream corridor, then residential. 

15/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

 South: A vacant parcel owned by Chehalem Park and Recreation District (CPRD), zoned CF (Community 

Facility). 

Access and Transportation: The proposed site is accessed through existing local residential roads.  Donna Drive, 

Corinne Drive, and Kennedy Drive are used for access.  The nearest major road is State Highway 219, which is a 

Minor Arterial.  Existing access safety concerns exist at the intersections of 2nd Street and Highway 219, and at 

the intersection of Everest Road and Highway 219.  ODOT and the City are planning on installing safety 

improvements at these intersections in the future.  The traffic impact of this development does not significantly 

increase the safety concerns at these intersections, as the problem exists currently. 

Full city residential streets will be constructed through the development to serve all lots, as well as a full street 

stub will need to be constructed to provide access to tax lot R3220 01101. 

Utilities: 

a. Sanitary Sewer: The project will connect to the existing 8” sanitary sewer line in Kennedy Drive. 

b. Water:  The project will connect to and complete the loop of the existing 8” water line in Kennedy 

Drive. 

c. Storm:  The project has existing and proposed stormwater infrastructure to serve the development.  

The preliminary stormwater report specifies that detention is only provided for the 25 year storm 

event.  All net new impervious area shall be detained for ½ of the 2 year, 10 year, and 25 year storm 

events.  Water quality also must be provide for all net new impervious area.  NMC 13.25.260 & 

13.25.270 

Agency Comments:  
 The application was routed to several public agencies for review and comment.  Comments and 

recommendations from city departments have been incorporated into the findings and conditions. The findings 

are jointly written by the Planning Division and Engineering Department.  As of the writing of this report, the city 

received the following agency comments (summarized below – the full text is in Attachment 2): 

 

 Oregon Dept. of Transportation: No comments. 

 Oregon Dept. of State Lands (summarized): The national wetlands inventory shows a 

wetland/waterway on the property. Based on a review of the available information, it does not appear 

that the proposed grading and site development will impact jurisdictional wetlands or waterways. DSL 

will require a permit for any impacts to these streams that is 50 cubic yards or greater. 

 Chehalem Park and Recreation District (summarized): CPRD requests that a street and all utilities be 

extended to their property south of the proposed subdivision, instead of having an access easement. 

They would be satisfied with an extension of either Kennedy Drive or Corrine Drive to their property. 

 Police Dept. (summarized): The Police Department had concerns about the amount of off-street and on-

street parking, congestion due to on-street parking on both sides of the street, and additional traffic 

problems at the neighborhood access points to Hwy 219 (Church, Everest, and Second Streets). 

 Frontier: No conflict with FTR facilities. Frontier Communications is currently working on a design to 

provide FIOS Fiber within the Highlands at Hess Creek Phase No. 4 and 5. 

16/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

 Waste Management: Reviewed, no conflict. All trash and recycling carts will be set out on a city street 

on pickup day. 

Public Comment: 
As of the writing of this staff report, the city has received no written public comments.  

Issues & Analysis summary: 
 

1. Access/utilities to the CPRD property to the south: 

The applicant’s original proposal showed that access to tax lot 3220-1101, owned by CPRD, would be 

provided through an access easement over a 40 foot wide tract. This would limit the future 

development of the property to three lots. The CF zone is primarily intended for parks and open space, 

but some other uses are also allowed (basic utilities, transportation facilities, emergency services) while 

others are conditional uses (churches, schools, community services). The CPRD parcel is undeveloped, 

and it is not known if it will develop as a single parcel or multiple parcels in the future. The access 

easement constrains the potential development of the property. For this reason the access easement 

needs to be replaced with a street extension and public right-of-way dedication to the property line of 

tax lot 3220-1101. The public water line needs to be extended within the right-of-way extension. 

 

The applicant supplied a revised subdivision preliminary plan on 7/31/15 that replaced the access 

easement with a street stub that extends Kennedy Drive, and a water line, to the southern property line. 

It also shows the location of the access easement to the Darby property west of the site. 

  

2. Long southern stream corridor tract:  The plat does not show the full extent of the parcel. There is a 

long southern section in the Stream Corridor overlay. This parcel would become landlocked as a result of 

this subdivision. The applicant needed to submit a revised tentative plan that shows how this parcel will 

have access, clarify that it is a tract (not a buildable parcel), and state who will own it. The revised 

7/31/15 subdivision preliminary plan shows a proposed access easement across the CPRD property to 

provide access to the stream corridor tract. The access and ownership plan would need to be finalized as 

part of the final plat review.  

 

17/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

 

3. Traffic at Everest/Hwy 219: Existing safety improvements are planned for the intersections of Hwy 219 

and 2nd Street, and Hwy 219 and Everest Road.  Plans include the installation of a median for right in / 

right out turning restrictions at Hwy 219 and 2nd street, and a traffic signal at the intersection of Hwy 

219 and Everest Road (pending a signal warrants study).  These improvements will be completed by 

ODOT and the City.  The proposed development does not significantly impact the existing safety 

concerns at these intersections. No traffic study is required because the development is not expected to 

generate more than 40 trips in the PM peak hour; it is expected to generate approximately 27 trips in 

the PM peak hour. 

 

4. Off-street parking: The subdivision will be for single family homes, each of which will have at least two 

off-street parking spaces. Most will probably have four (two in a garage, two in a driveway). 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  At this writing, staff recommends the following motion: 

Move to adopt Planning Commission Order 2015-18, which approves the revised 7/31/15 subdivision tentative 

plan with the attached conditions.  

  

18/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER NO. 2015-18 

 

 AN ORDER APPROVING  SUB3-15-001 FOR THE HIGHLANDS AT HESS CREEK – PHASE 4 

AND 5 SUBDIVISION AT THE SOUTH END OF KENNEDY  DRIVE AND CORRINE DRIVE, 

YAMHILL COUNTY TAX LOT 3220-1400.   

RECITALS 

1. Leonard Johnson submitted an application for tentative plan approval for a 27 lot subdivision at 

the south end of Kennedy Drive and Corrine Drive, Yamhill County tax lot 3220-1400. 

2. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on June 25, 2015, to 

consider the application.  The Commission considered testimony, deliberated, and continued the 

meeting to August 13, 2015. The applicant submitted a revised tentative subdivision plan on July 

31, 2015 to address access issues.  

3. On August 13, 2015 the Planning Commission deliberated and found that the revised application, 

as conditioned, meets the applicable criteria as shown in the findings shown in Exhibit “A”. 

The Newberg Planning Commission orders as follows: 

1. The tentative subdivision plan application SUB3-15-001 is hereby approved, subject to the 

conditions contained in Exhibit “B”.  Exhibit "B" is hereby adopted and by this reference 

incorporated. 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “A” are hereby adopted.  Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted and by 

this reference incorporated. 

3. This order shall be effective August 28, 2015 unless appealed prior to that date. 

4. This order shall expire two years after the effective date above if the applicant does record the 

final plat by that time, unless an extension is granted per Newberg Development Code 

15.235.130(B). 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 13th day of August, 2015. 

 
        ATTEST: 

 

Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 
 

List of Exhibits: 

 Exhibit “A”: Findings  

 Exhibit “B”:  Conditions 

 Exhibit “C”: Tentative plan 

  

19/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

Exhibit A: Findings to  
Order 2015-18 

 

Highlands at Hess Creek phases 4 & 5: Subdivision tentative plan 

SUB3-15-001 

 

I. SUBDIVISION CRITERIA THAT APPLY:  Newberg Development Code 15.235.060(A). 

The Director (Type II) or Planning Commission (Type III) shall approve a subdivision 

of four parcels or more under a Type II or Type III procedure if the resulting parcels 

comply with the following approval criteria: 

 1. Approval does not impede the future best use of the remainder of the property 

under the same ownership or adversely affect the safe and healthful development of 

such remainder or adjoining land or access thereto. 

15.405.030 Lot dimensions and frontage. 

D. Frontage. 

1. No lot or development site shall have less than the following lot 

frontage standards: 

a. Each lot or development site shall have either frontage on a public street for 

a distance of at least 25 feet or have access to a public street through 

an easement that is at least 25 feet wide. No new private streets, as defined in 

NMC 15.05.030, shall be created to provide frontage or access. 

b. Each lot in an R-2 and R-3 zone shall have a minimum width of 30 feet at 

the front building line. 

 

15.05.030 Definitions. 

“Private drive” means a private way which affords principal means of access to 

three or fewer lots (see also “service drive”). 

“Private street” means a private way which affords principal means of access to 

four or more lots (see also “service drive”). 

 

15.505.110 Future extension of streets. 

Where the subdivision or partition is adjacent to land likely to be divided in the 

future, streets shall continue through to the boundary lines of the area under 

the same ownership of which the subdivision or partition is a part, where the 

director determines that such continuation is necessary to provide for the 

orderly division of such adjacent land or the transportation and access needs of 

the community. [Ord. 2494, 4-6-98; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.690.] 

  

20/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=94
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=180
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=180
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=94
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg1505.html#15.05.030
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=54
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=254
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=254
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=275
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=223
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=275
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=223
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2494.pdf
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2451.pdf


Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

15.235.190 Dedication. 

A. Generally. The director may require right-of-way for adequate and 

proper streets, including arterials, collector streets, local streets, and 

other streets, to be dedicated to the public by the applicant of such design and in 

such locations as are necessary to facilitate provision for the transportation 

and access needs of the community and the subject area in accordance with the 

purpose of this code. 

Finding:  

Long southern stream corridor tract:  The applicant is subdividing their entire parcel, but the plat does not 

show the full extent of the parcel. There is a long southern section, south of lot 94, in the Stream Corridor 

overlay, which will presumably become a tract. The revised 7/31/15 subdivision plan shows that this parcel 

could potentially have access through an access easement on CPRD’s tax lot 3220-1101.  The applicant will 

need to finalize the access and ownership plan for this tract before final plat approval. 

Access/utilities to tax lot 3220-1101 south of the site: The applicant’s revised 7/31/15 proposal shows that 

access to tax lot 3220-1101, owned by CPRD, will be provided through a street stub to the property line. 

Kennedy Drive will be extended south, with a 54 foot wide right-of-way. A water line will be extended 

south within the Kennedy Drive stub. The plan also shows an access easement extended west across lots 83 

and 84 to provide access to the Darby parcel, tax lot 3220-1000. 

The original plan for this application (phases 4 & 5 of Highlands at Hess Creek) showed an access easement 

instead of a street stub providing access to tax lot 3220-1101 south of the site. The earlier Phase 1 approval 

for the Highlands at Hess Creek subdivision showed this access easement, as well, but that was only a 

concept plan. It was not approved as the future street plan for the later phases of the subdivision. There are 

specific findings that would have had to be made addressing NDC 15.235.110 (criteria for approval of a 

future street plan), and that did not occur during Phase 1.  

The CPRD lot (tax lot 3220-1101) is undeveloped. It is in the CF (Community Facility) zone. The CF zone 

is primarily intended for parks and open space, but some other uses are also allowed (basic utilities, 

transportation facilities, emergency services, golf course) while others are conditional uses (churches, 

schools, colleges, community services, cemetery, heliport). Under code section 15.505.110 listed above, if 

the site was considered likely to be divided in the future then there would be no question that a street would 

need to be extended to the property. If the site was zoned R-1 or R-2 then it would be considered very likely 

to be divided in the future. 

The CPRD site in the CF zone is different, because there is no way to determine at this point if the lot will 

be further divided in the future. If the site was going to indefinitely remain a single lot then a driveway in an 

access easement could be adequate. The site is 9 acres, so it is large enough to potentially contain more than 

one use. An access easement would limit the ability to divide the property into more than three lots, so an 

access easement would constrain the potential future development of tax lot 3220-1101. The criteria 

requires that approval of the subdivision not adversely affect the safe and healthful development of 

adjoining land or access thereto. Having only an access easement for street frontage would constrain the 

potential development of tax lot 3220-1101, so it would adversely affect the access and development of the 

parcel.  

One commenter stated that findings cannot be based on speculative facts. The commenter went on to state  

21/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=29
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=73
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72


Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

that because tax lot 3220-1101 is owned by the Parks District and is zoned CF that it would be developed as 

a single park parcel and would only need an access easement instead of a street. That is speculation, because 

it presumes to know how the site will develop in the future. The city is not speculating about how the site 

will be developed. The CPRD site is fairly large and could be developed in multiple ways with multiple 

uses. Not speculating about the future development plan for the site means that a street stub is required for 

access to avoid constraining the development options for the parcel. 

One commenter stated that the subdivision approval must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and 

implied that only development of tax lot 3220-1101 as a single park parcel would comply with the 

Comprehensive Plan. The Development Code is the document that implements the Comprehensive Plan, 

and is acknowledged as being consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. The Development Code lists several 

uses that are allowed outright or conditionally in the CF zone. If the site was developed as a single park 

parcel that would be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. If the site was subdivided and developed with 

several of the uses allowed in the CF zone then that would also be consistent with the Development Code 

and the Comprehensive Plan. 

Dolan findings: The issue that the original subdivision proposal created was limiting the access and future 

development potential of tax lot 3220-1101 by providing an access easement instead of a street connection 

for access. City development policies require “to and through” extension of streets and utilities to enable the 

future development of adjacent parcels. The revised 7.31.15 subdivision plan resolves the access issue by 

providing a street connection to tax lot 3220-1101 that provides adequate access. The street stub is the 

solution to the access issue created by the original proposal, which demonstrates that there is a nexus 

between the street stub and the access “to and through” policy. The cost of the street stub connection is 

proportional to the access issue and the scope of the subdivision development because street stub 

connections are the normal and typical provisions made to provide access to adjoining properties during a 

subdivision. The stub is the minimum length and size needed to accomplish the provision of access to tax lot 

3220-1101, and is not an extraordinary requirement.  

For the reasons listed above, approval of the subdivision as conditioned would not impede the future best 

use of the remainder of the property or adversely affect the safe and healthful development of adjoining land 

or access thereto. 

 2. The subdivision complies with this code including but not limited to  

15.340.010 through 15.440.080 and 15.235.030 et seq. 

Finding: The lot standards and development standards are addressed in detail below in section II. 

 3. Either: 

 a. Improvements required to be completed prior to final plat approval; or 

 b. The sub divider will substantially complete, as defined by city policies, 

required improvements prior to final plat approval, and enter into a 

performance agreement to complete the remaining improvements.  The 

performance agreement shall include security in a form acceptable to the city in 

sufficient amount to insure completion of all required improvements; or 

 c. A local improvement district shall have been formed to complete the 

22/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

required improvements; or 

 d. The required improvements are contained in a city or other 

government agency capital improvement project that is budgeted and scheduled 

for construction. 

Finding: The required public improvements will be completed prior to final plat approval. 

II. Applicable Lot Requirement:   Newberg Development Code 15.405.010, Lot Area; Lot 

Areas per Dwelling Unit 

A. In the following districts, each lot or development site shall have an area as shown below 

except as otherwise permitted by this code: 

2. In the R-2, R-3, and RP districts, each lot or development site shall have a minimum area of 

3,000 square feet or as may be established by a subdistrict. In the R-2 and R-P districts, the 

average size of lots in a subdivision intended for single-family development shall not exceed 

5,000 square feet. 

C. In calculating lot area for this section, lot area does not include land within public 

or private streets. In calculating lot area for maximum lot area/minimum density 

requirements, lot area does not include land within stream corridors, land reserved for 

public parks or open spaces, commons buildings, land for preservation of natural, scenic, or 

historic resources, land on slopes exceeding 15 percent or for avoidance of identified natural 

hazards, land in shared access easements, public walkways, or entirely used for utilities, land 

held in reserve in accordance with a future development plan, or land for uses not 

appurtenant to the residence. 

Finding: All of the lots are at least 3,000 square feet, and exceed the minimum standard. The average lot 

size, excluding area in the stream corridor, is 4,831 square feet, so the average lot size does not exceed 

5,000 square feet. This criterion is met. 

III. Applicable Lot Requirements – Newberg Development Code 15.405.030 Lot Dimensions 

and Frontage 

A. Width. Widths of lots shall conform to the standards of this code. 

B. Depth to Width Ratio. Each lot and parcel shall have an average depth between the 

front and rear lines of not more than two and one-half times the average width between 

the side lines. Depths of lots shall conform to the standards of this code. Development 

of lots under 15,000 square feet are exempt from the lot depth to width ratio 

requirement. 

C. Area. Lot sizes shall conform to standards set forth in this code. Lot area 

calculations shall not include area contained in public or private streets as defined by 

this code. 

D. Frontage. 

23/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=94
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=275
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=270
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216.1
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=211.1
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=93
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289


Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

 1. No lot or development site shall have less than the following lot frontage 

standards: 

  a. Each lot or development site shall have either frontage on a public 

street for a distance of at least 25 feet or have access to a public street through an 

easement that is at least 25 feet wide. No new private streets, as defined in NMC 

15.05.030, shall be created to provide frontage or access. 

  b. Each lot in an R-2 and R-3 zone shall have a minimum width of 30 

feet at the front building line. 

  c. Each lot in an R-1, AI, or RP zone shall have a minimum width of 50 

feet at the front building line. 

  d. Each lot in an AR zone shall have a minimum width of 45 feet at the 

front building line. 

 2. The above standards apply with the following exceptions: 

  a. Legally created lots of record in existence prior to the effective date of 

the ordinance codified in this code. 

  b. Lots or development sites which, as a process of their creation, were 

approved with sub-standard widths in accordance with provisions of this code. 

  c. Existing private streets may not be used for new dwelling units, except 

private streets that were created prior to March 1, 1999, including paving to fire access 

roads standards and installation of necessary utilities, and private streets allowed in the 

airport residential and airport industrial districts.  

Finding: All of the lots in the subdivision have at least 25 feet of frontage on a street or through an 

access easement, and are at least 30 feet wide at the front building line. This criterion is met. 

IV. Applicable Development Standards  

NDC 15.510.040:  Water Supply.  All lots and parcels within subdivisions and 

partitions shall be served by the water system of the City of Newberg. 

Findings: There is an existing 8” waterline in Kennedy Drive and Corinne Drive.  The proposed water 

design includes extending the public main line and completing the loop, and extending the water line 

south in the stub of Kennedy Drive.  The water design will be reviewed in detail when construction 

plans are submitted.  

Water SDC’s – In accordance with Newberg Municipal Code this design review does increase the 

impacts to the water system and is therefore not exempt from water SDC charges. 

24/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

Domestic and Fire water flow calculations will be required to be submitted to the Engineering Services 

Department for the proposed development that conform to the City Building Division requirements 

indicating that minimum service pressures are available at the future highest fixtures in the development. 

Location of fire hydrants shall be approved by Newberg Fire Department prior to submittal of 

construction design plans. 

 

NDC 15.510.050:  Sewage.  All lots and parcels within subdivisions and partitions 

shall, where practicable, as determined by the Director, in accordance with the 

provisions of this Code, be served by the sewage system of the City. 

Findings:  There is currently an 8” wastewater line that runs through the proposed site.  The plans show 

wastewater service will be connected to this existing line.  The sewer design appears to comply with the 

engineering standards design manual, but will be reviewed in detail when construction plans are 

submitted.  

Sanitary SDC’s – In accordance with Newberg Municipal Code this design review does increase the 

impacts to the public wastewater system and is therefore not exempt from sanitary SDC charges. 

The sanitary sewer easement appears to meet engineering standards design manual section 2.3.3, but 

will be reviewed in detail when construction plans are submitted.  A commercial driveway and paved 

maintenance access shall be provided through the entire easement.  

NDC 15.510.060:  Land Surface Drainage.  Such grading shall be done and such 

drainage facilities shall be constructed by the land divider as are adequate for the 

purpose of proper drainage of the partition or subdivision, of areas affected thereby, 

and for the preservation of healthful and convenient surroundings and conditions for 

residents of the subdivision or partition, and for the general public, in accordance with 

specifications adopted by the City Council under 15.510.030. 

Findings: The developer has submitted a preliminary stormwater report dated May 26, 2015.  The 

stormwater design utilizes a regional facility for the water quality and quantity control.   Stormwater will 

discharge into an existing 12-inch storm drain pipe, out-falling into a natural drainage.  The stormwater 

report and design use an assumption that the detention requirements are to match the 25-year peak flow 

event.  Per NMC 13.25.260 & 13.25.270, as well as the engineering standards manual section 4, 

stormwater detention shall be provided for ½ of the 2 year, 2 year, 10 year, and 25 year storms.   

Approval of this project is conditioned on the applicant meeting the city’s stormwater code (ordinance 

No. 2021-2754) and the engineering standards manual section 4.  LIDA is the City’s preferred method 

of water quality and quantity facility per section 4.7.3 of the Engineering Standards Manual.  Given that 

the development utilizes an existing stormwater basin, it is reasonable to assume the use of a regional 

facility for this development.  Submit a final engineer's storm water report per the City of Newberg 

25/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

Engineering Design Standards Manual Section 4.4.  All storm drain and detention/water quality facilities 

to be maintained privately with a storm water maintenance agreement.   

This development disturbs more than one acre of land and therefore an issued DEQ 1200-C permit shall 

be submitted to the City with the construction plan review submittal.  No grading shall occur prior to the 

issuance of the 1200-C permit  

Stormwater SDC’s – In accordance with Newberg Municipal Code, this design review does increase the 

impacts to the public improvement facility and is therefore not exempt from stormwater SDC charges. 

 

NDC 15.505.030:  Streets and Alleys. The land divider or developer shall grade and 

pave all streets and alleys in the subdivision or partition to the width specified in 

15.505.060, and provide for drainage of all such streets and alleys, construct curbs and 

gutters within the subdivision or partition in accordance with specifications adopted by 

the City Council under 15.510.030.  Such improvements shall be constructed to 

specifications of the City under the supervision and direction of the Director.  It shall 

be the responsibility of the land divider or developer  to provide street signs 

Findings:  The proposed development takes access from local streets including Kennedy Drive, Donna 

Drive and Corinne Drive.  Full street improvements will be provided through the development for access 

to all lots, including an extension of Kennedy Drive south to tax lot 3220-1101 (per the revised 7/31/15 

subdivision plan). The applicant intends to construct all of the street and utility improvements at one 

time. In the event that bad weather prevents the completion of improvements within the eastern Phase 5 

section, however, the length of the street in Phase 4 will be short enough that a temporary turnaround 

would not be required. 

The development will require substantial heavy construction traffic.  Developer shall be responsible for 

the repair and replacement of any off-site city infrastructure, including streets, which are damaged by 

construction activities. 

Transportation SDC’s – In accordance with Newberg Municipal Code this design review does increase 

the impacts to the public transportation system and is therefore not exempt from transportation SDC 

charges. 

 

NDC 15.505.040:  Existing Streets.  A subdivision, partition or development requiring 

a Type II design review abutting or adjacent to an existing road of inadequate width, 

shall dedicate additional right-of-way to and improve the street to the width specified in 

15.505.060. 

NDC 15.505.210:  Sidewalks.  Sidewalks shall be located and constructed in 

accordance with the provisions of 15.510.030. Minimum width is five feet. 

15.505.220 Public walkways. 

26/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

A. The review body for a design review or land division may require easements for and 

construction of public walkways where such walkway is needed for the public safety and 

convenience or where the walkway is necessary to meet the standards of this code or a 

walkway plan. Public walkways are to connect to cul-de-sacs, to pass through oddly shaped or 

unusually long blocks, to provide for networks of public paths according to adopted plans, or 

to provide access to schools, parks or other community destinations or public areas of such 

design, width, and location as reasonably required to facilitate public use. Where possible, said 

dedications may also be employed to accommodate public utilities. 

 

NDC 15.510.070:  Street Trees.  Street trees shall be provided adjacent to all public 

rights-of-way abutting or within a subdivision or partition.  Street trees shall be 

installed in accordance with the provisions of 15.420.010(B) (4). 

Finding:  Sidewalks and street trees will be provided along each lot frontage. The applicant needs to 

submit a street tree plan showing a species listed on the City’s preferred street tree list. This criterion is 

met, as conditioned. 

V. Overlays 

A. Airport Overlay:  The site is located within the airport overlay zone.  The main effect of 

the overlay is to limit the height of structures.   Because of the actual distance from the runway, 

the height limits of the R-2 base zone are lower than the height limits set by the airport overlay, 

so the overlay will have little effect on building.  There is an existing easement over the property 

relating to noise and airport operations. 

B. Stream Corridor Overlay:  A portion of the property at the western and eastern edges is 

within the stream corridor overlay.  No grading or development is proposed within the stream 

corridor areas.  

 

Conclusion:  Based on the above-mentioned findings, the application meets the required criteria within 

the Newberg Development Code, subject to completion of the attached conditions. 

  

27/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=86
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216.1
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291


Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

Exhibit B: Conditions to  
Order 2015-18 

 

Highlands at Hess Creek phases 4 & 5 

SUB3-15-001 

 
A. The applicant must provide the following information for review and approval prior to 

construction of any improvements: 

1. Construction Plans must be submitted for all infrastructure per the requirements 

below. 

General Requirements: 
a. An engineering permit is required.  Submit engineered construction plans for 

review and approval of all utilities, public street improvements, and any new 

public streets being constructed.  Please note that additional Engineering Services 

Department plan review application and fees apply for review of plans.  Submit 

any required easements for review and approval, and record approved easements. 

b. No construction of, or connection to, any existing or proposed public 

utility/improvements will be permitted until all plans are approved and all 

necessary permits have been obtained 

c. Staff reserves the right to require revisions/modifications to the public 

improvement construction plans and completed street improvements, if additional 

modifications or expansion of the sight distance onto adjacent streets is required. 

d. All survey monuments on the subject site or that may be subject to disturbance 

within the construction area, or the construction of any off-site improvements 

shall be adequately referenced and protected prior to commencement of any 

construction activity.  If the survey monuments are disturbed, moved, relocated or 

destroyed as a result of any construction, the project shall, at its cost, retain the 

services of a registered professional land surveyor in the State of Oregon to 

restore the monument to its original condition and file the necessary surveys as 

required by Oregon State law.  A copy of any recorded survey shall be submitted 

to Engineering staff. 

The plans must note the following: 

Utilities: 

1. Storm Sewer Requirements: 

a. The system shall be reviewed and approved by the City of Newberg 

Engineering Department prior to issuance of Permits for the development. 

28/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

b. Stormwater Report:  Submit a final engineer's storm water report per the City 

of Newberg Engineering Design Standards Manual and findings noted in 

Exhibit A of the staff report.  All stormwater detention/water quality facilities 

proposed to serve public right-of-way shall be publicly owned and privately 

maintained with a storm water maintenance agreement.  Private facilities shall 

also be privately maintained with a storm water maintenance agreement. 

c. Stormwater SDC’s – In accordance with Newberg Municipal Code, this 

design review does increase the impacts to the public improvement facility 

and is therefore not exempt from stormwater SDC charges. 

2. Sanitary Sewer Requirements 

a. Sanitary sewer SDCs - In accordance with Newberg Municipal Code this 

design review does increase the impacts to the public wastewater system and 

is therefore not exempt from sanitary SDC charges. 

b. Provide a commercial driveway and paved maintenance access through the 

sanitary sewer easement. 

3. Water Requirements 

a. Location of fire hydrants shall be approved by Newberg Fire Department prior 

to submittal of construction design plans. 

b. The water system shall be extended to the South property (TL R3220 01101) 

through a full width public right-of way stub. 

c. Fire flow calculations will be required to be submitted to the Engineering 

Services Department for the proposed development that conform to the City 

of Newberg Fire Department standards, indicating that the development will 

meet the minimum service requirements. 

d. Domestic water flow calculations will be required to be submitted to the 

Engineering Services Department for the proposed development that conform 

to the City Building Division requirements indicating that minimum service 

pressures are available at the future highest fixtures in the development. 

e. Water SDC’s – In accordance with Newberg Municipal Code this design 

review does increase the impacts to the water system and is therefore not 

exempt from water SDC charges. 

4. General Utility Requirements: 

a. The applicant shall obtain written approval from the appropriate source to 

construct any utilities or improvements within easement areas. 

  

29/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

5. Streets: 

a. Developer shall be responsible for the repair and replacement of any off-

site city infrastructure, including streets, which are damaged by 

construction activities. 

 

b. Developer shall dedicate full street right-of-way and a city standard 

residential street for access to the property to the South (TL R3220 01101) 

 

c. Transportation SDC’s – In accordance with Newberg Municipal Code this 

design review does increase the impacts to the public transportation 

system and is therefore not exempt from transportation SDC charges. 

 

3. Street Tree Plan: Provide a landscape plan that identifies all planned tree species for 

street trees and common landscaping in accordance with NDC 15.420.010.  A landscape 

bond will be required for installation of street trees. 

4. Grading: Obtain a DEQ 1200-C permit and a city grading permit prior to grading. 

B. The applicant must complete the following prior to final plat approval.  

1. Southeastern stream corridor tract:  Show the full extent of the parcel on the final plat, 

show ownership of the tract, and finalize the access for the tract; if access is over the 

CPRD property then supply a copy of the access easement.  

2. Substantially Complete the Construction Improvements:  Prior to final plat approval, 

the applicant must substantially complete the construction improvements and secure for 

them in accordance with city policy.  Complete construction and call for a walk-through 

inspection with the Engineering Services Department (503-537-1273). 

a. Construct all public streets according to city standards for local residential streets. 

b. Construct all approved public utility lines, including stormwater facilities. 

C. Final Plat Application:  In accordance with NDC 15.235.150, submit the following for City 

review of the final plat application.  Construction improvements should be substantially 

complete at this point. 

1. Application Materials: 

a. Type I application form (found either at City Hall or on the website – 

www.newbergoregon.gov in the Planning Forms section) with the appropriate 

fees. 

b. A current title report (within 6 months old) for the property.  Include copies of all 

existing easements and CC&Rs that pertain to the property. 

c. A written response to these Conditions of Approval that specifies how each 

condition has been met. 

30/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

d. Two blue-line copies of the final subdivision plat for preliminary review by the 

City Engineering Services Department.   The City Engineer will make red-line 

comments on these sheets for your surveyor/engineer to correct prior to printing 

final Mylar copies. 

e. Any other documents required for review. 

2. Dedications/Easements Required:  The plat must show the following: 

a. Easements:  

i. All utility, sanitary sewer, water and storm drainage easements to the City. 

ii. 10 ft utility easements along all frontages. 

b. Dedications of Right-Of-Way as shown on the tentative plat and required by these 

conditions.   

3. Documents Required:  Provide the following documents for review and approval: 

a. A signed and notarized performance agreement that assures construction and 

performance in accordance with the approved final plans. 

b. A bond for street tree planting in an amount to be approved by the Planning 

Division. 

c. Complete a subdivision agreement with the City of Newberg.  The completed 

subdivision agreement shall be recorded by the applicant at the time of the final 

plat recordation. 

d. A final draft copy of any Codes, Covenants and Restrictions (CC&Rs) for the 

subdivision.  Planning staff will review the proposed CC&Rs for compliance with 

City Code prior to recordation. 

4. Final Mylar Copies of the Subdivision Plat:  Submit two final mylar copies of the 

corrected final subdivision plat (after red-line corrections have been made).  Original 

plats shall be in substantial conformity to the approved tentative plan and shall conform 

to the Yamhill County Surveyor’s specifications and requirements pertaining to material 

that has the characteristics of adequate strength, permanency, as well as suitability for 

binding and copying.  Plats shall be in clear and legible form and may be placed on as 

many sheets as necessary, but a face sheet and an index page shall be included for all 

plats placed upon three or more sheets.  Scale requirements shall be the same as specified 

for the tentative plans.   

D. The final plat process must be completed prior to issuance of any building permits.  The 

City will review the final plat application after the applicant has completed all of the 

conditions of approval listed above.   

31/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

1. City Review: In accordance with NDC 15.235.160 and 15.235.180, Planning staff shall 

determine that: 

a. Streets, roads, and alleys for public use are dedicated without any reservation or 

restriction other than reversionary rights upon vacation of any such street or road 

and easements for public utilities. 

b. The proposal complies with this code. 

c. The plat is in substantial conformity with the provisions of the tentative plan for 

the subdivision, as approved. 

d. The plat contains a donation to the public of all common improvements, including 

but not limited to streets, roads, parks, sewage disposal and water supply systems. 

e. Explanations of all common improvements required as conditions of approval of 

the tentative plan of the subdivision have been accounted for and referenced on 

the plat. 

f. There will exist an adequate quantity and quality of water and an adequate sewage 

disposal system to support the proposed use of the land described in the plat. 

g. Either: 

i. Improvements as required by this code or as a condition of tentative plan 

approval have been filed with the Director; or 

ii. A performance agreement (bond) or suitable substitute as agreed upon by 

the city and applicant has been filed with the Director in sufficient amount 

to insure the completion of all required improvements; or 

iii. A petition for improvements has been properly executed by the applicant 

who is effecting the subdivision and will be assessed for said 

improvements. 

h. Taxes, as well as public liens, assessments and fees, with respect to the 

subdivision area have been paid, or adequate guarantee has been provided 

assuring said taxes, liens, assessments and fees will be paid prior to recordation. 

i. The sub divider has entered into agreement with the city relating to completion of 

improvements, payment of sewer and water hookup fees, inspection fees, public 

lands payments, monumentation or any other elements deemed relevant to the 

purpose of this or any other city ordinance, state statute or federal law. 

j. If the conditions set at the time of tentative land division approval are not fulfilled 

and the final plat or final map is not recorded by the tentative plan expiration date, 

the tentative land division approval is null and void. 

32/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

2. Required Signatures: According to NDC 15.235.180, approval of a final subdivision 

plat must be acknowledged and signed by the following: 

a. Community Development Director 

b. The County Assessor 

c. The County Surveyor 

d. The City Recorder 

3. Recording: Deliver the approved subdivision plat to the office of the County Clerk for 

recording.  The County Clerk’s office is located at 414 NE Evans St, McMinnville, OR 

97128.    

4. Completion: Return an exact copy of the recorded plat to the Director to complete the 

subdivision process. 

E. Development Notes: 

1. Postal Service: The applicant shall submit plans to the Newberg Postmaster for approval 

of proposed mailbox delivery locations.  Contact the Newberg Post Office for assistance 

at 503-554-8014. 

2. PGE: PGE can provide electrical service to this project under terms of the current tariff 

which will involve developer expense and easements.  Contact the Service & Design 

Supervisor, PGE, at 503-463-4348. 

3. Frontier: The developer must coordinate trench/conduit requirements with Frontier. 

Contact the Engineering Division, Frontier, at 541-269-3375. 

4. Addresses:  The Planning Division will assign addresses for the new subdivision.  

Planning Division staff will send out notice of the new addresses after they receive a 

recorded mylar copy of the final subdivision plat.  

 

 

33/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

Exhibit C: Revised Tentative Plan – 7/31/15 

 

34/332 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2015\Highlands at Hess Creek 4-5\Revised SUB3-15-001 Highlands at Hess Creek staff report 8.13.15.docx 

 

Attachment 1: Aerial photo with zoning 

 

 

35/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

36/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

37/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

38/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

39/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

40/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

41/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

42/332 



 
 
 
 

ANDREW H. STAMP, P.C. 
ATTORNEY AT LAW 

Kruse-Mercantile Professional Offices, Suite 16 
4248 Galewood St. 

Lake Oswego, OR 97035 
 

             Tele: 503.675.4318 
Admitted in Oregon.            Fax:  503.675.4319 
               andrewstamp@comcast.net 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
  

 25 June 2015 

VIA E MAIL      
 

City of Newberg Planning Commission  

c/o Community Development Department  

P.O. Box 970 

414 E. First Street 

Newberg, OR 97132  

 

Re:   Highlands at Hess Creek Phases 4 & 5 (SUB3-15-001) 

Dear Members of the Planning Commission: 

I am a land use attorney representing Mart Storm and Leonard Johnson with regard to the 

above cited application.  This letter responds to the Staff Report issued on or about June 18, 

2015.  Please enter this letter into the record of this case. 

I. Issue, Background, and Proposed Solution.   

 At issue is staff’s proposed conditions related to street dedications and improvements 

which staff alleges are potentially needed to serve park property in the future, but only if the park 

property is subdivided in the future.   

 This is not the first time the issue of access to the park has arisen. Indeed, it is an issue 

that has already been resolved.   When the City first approved the concept plan and Phase I 

subdivision for Highland at Hess Creek, it addressed the issue in its findings, as follows: 

Approval does not impeded the future best use of the remainder of 

the property, and in fact would facilitate the future planned 

development of the remainder of the property. Adjoining 

properties would not be adversely affected by the approval and 

development of this property.  The applicants have been in 

communication with the adjoining property owners and have 

entered into a street access and utility access agreement with the 

ATTACHMENT 2

43/332 



Ltr to: City of Newberg Planning Commission 

25 June 2015 

Page 2 

 
  

property to the north that is contingent upon the approval of the 

development.  The property owner to the west, Chehalem Park and 

Recreation District, is currently in negotiations with the applicants 

for a land swap to facilitate both phase 3 of this subdivision and 

also the creation of a public park on the southern portion of the 

property. 

See Exhibit 1 (Findings and Conditions SUB 06-006).  The results of this negotiation with 

Chehalem Parks and Recreation District (“CPRD”) was a 25’ wide “Temporary Access and 

Utility Easement” which would expire at such time as the land over which it ran was dedicated to 

the public as ROW.  See Exhibit 2 (Instrument 200802862, dated 7 February 2008).  It was the 

parties understanding that this 25 foot easement satisfied both the applicant’s and CPRD’s access 

needs for the park property, and the applicant moved forward in reliance of this agreement.   

 However, staff now seeks to upset the investment-backed expectations of the applicant by 

insisting both on additional ROW dedication and also expensive full street improvements.  In the 

sections below, we detail why staff’s “oversizing” demands are unlawful, and preserve our right 

to appeal any decision on the basis of unlawful exactions.  ORS 197.796(1).  Nonetheless, in the 

spirit of compromise, the applicant is willing to offer the following alternative to staff’s 

proposal: 

 Applicant agrees to dedicate a tract of land 54 feet in width (“Tract D”) over and across 

the remaining portion of the existing “Temporary Access and Utility Easement” dated 7 

February 2008 (Instrument 200802862).   

 

 Construct a 16 foot wide access road on Tract D for the benefit of CPRD.   

Although this compromise will cost the applicant an additional lot, it will save the applicant the 

cost of providing a full street improvement to support hypothetical speculative land uses which 

may not even come to pass.  We urge the Planning Commission to approve these alternative 

conditions in lieu of the staff proposal.             

II.  Detailed Facts.  

Staff’s proposed condition A(1)(b) in “Exhibit B” to the Staff Report states as follows: 

b. Full width right-of-way and local street extension to tax lot 

3220-1101.  Either Kennedy Drive or Corrine Drive can be 

extended.  Tract B can be removed.  All lots must continue to meet 

the R-2 Development standards.  

 

In addition, proposed condition A (Utilities)((5)(b) similarly states:  

 

ATTACHMENT 2

44/332 



Ltr to: City of Newberg Planning Commission 

25 June 2015 

Page 3 

 
  

b. “Developer shall dedicate full street right-of-way and a city 

standard residential street for access to the property to the South.  

(TL R 3220 01101).”  

 

Staff seeks to justify the proposed exaction via the following proposed findings of fact and 

conclusions of law:   

 

Access/utilities to tax lot 3220-1101 south of the site: The 

applicant’s proposal shows that access to tax lot 3220-1101, owned 

by CPRD, will be provided through an access easement over Tract 

B, a 40 foot wide tract. Newberg’s Development Code does not 

allow private streets, so the access easement can only contain a 

driveway. A driveway, under the Development Code, can only 

serve as access for three lots. The Development Code does allow 

an access easement to qualify as frontage for a lot. 

 

The CPRD lot is undeveloped. It is in the CF (Community Facility) 

zone. The CF zone is primarily intended for parks and open space, 

but some other uses are also allowed (basic utilities, transportation 

facilities, emergency services) while others are conditional uses 

(churches, schools, community services). Under code section 

15.505.110 listed above, if the site was considered likely to be 

divided in the future then there would be no question that a street 

would need to be extended to the property. If the site was zoned R-

1 or R-2 then it would be considered very likely to be divided in 

the future.  

 

The CF site is different, because there is no way to determine at 

this point if the lot will be further divided in the future. If the site 

was going to indefinitely remain a single lot then a driveway in an 

access easement could be adequate. The site is 9 acres, so it is 

large enough to potentially contain more than one use. An access 

easement would limit the ability to divide the property into more 

than three lots, so an access easement does constrain the potential 

future development of tax lot 3220-1101. The criteria requires that 

approval of the subdivision not adversely affect the safe and 

healthful development of adjoining land or access thereto. Having 

only an access easement for street frontage would constrain the 

potential development of tax lot 3220-1101, so it would adversely 

affect the access and development to the parcel. For that reason, 

the access easement in Tract B needs to be replaced with a public 

street extension within public right-of-way. The public water line 

also needs to be extended within the right-of-way to the property 

ATTACHMENT 2

45/332 



Ltr to: City of Newberg Planning Commission 

25 June 2015 

Page 4 

 
  

line. The street stub to the south could be an extension of either 

Kennedy Drive or Corrine Drive.  (Emphasis in Original).  

 

For the reasons listed above, approval of the subdivision as 

conditioned would not impede the future best use of the remainder 

of the property or adversely affect the safe and healthful 

development of adjoining land or access thereto. 

 

The current Comprehensive Plan designation for the CPRD property, 3220-1101, is “Park.”  

 

 
 

Similarly, the current zoning designation is “Community Facility”: 

ATTACHMENT 2

46/332 



Ltr to: City of Newberg Planning Commission 

25 June 2015 

Page 5 

 
  

 
 

Contrary to the speculative testimony provided in the staff report concerning the future 

subdivision of the park property for hypothetical schools, churches, etc., CPRD has stated all 

along that it is going to build a park on this property.  In a recent article published by the 

Newberg Graphic, CPRD Superintendent Don Clements is quoted as saying that those plans are 

still on track:  

“We always planned on developing a neighborhood playground 

there, a neighborhood park, and that’s still in the planning 

process,” CPRD Superintendent Don Clements said. “That’s really 

what we originally bought the property for many, many years ago 

because there was nothing there but we knew that would all 

eventually develop.”  

* * * * *.  

ATTACHMENT 2

47/332 



Ltr to: City of Newberg Planning Commission 

25 June 2015 

Page 6 

 
  

Clements said the plan has been to develop the park as soon as 

possible and that working on grants could start as early as next 

year. 

See Colin Staub, Hess Creek Development Reaches Final Stage, Newberg Graphic,17 June 2015.   

Exhibit 3. Given this testimony, it is unclear why staff has concerns about potential future 

subdivisions of the property.  Regardless, there is no substantial evidence to support staff’s 

proposed finding, and the condition of approval must be deleted.   

 

III. Legal Analysis. 

  

A. Findings May Not Be Based on Speculative Facts.  

 

As the Planning Commission is well aware, its findings must be supported by substantial 

evidence in the whole record.  ORS 197.828(2)(a).  The term “substantial evidence” means 

“evidence that a reasonable person could accept as adequate to support a conclusion.”  Constant 

Velocity Corp v. City of Aurora, 136 Or App 81, 901 P2d 258 (1995).  A statement made by a 

party or staff will not be considered to be “substantial” in nature unless there is an adequate 

foundation supporting that testimony.  As examples, consider the following cases:  

 

 Worchester v. City of Cannon Beach, 10 Or LUBA 307 (1983). LUBA held that 

when a person who is alleged to be an “expert witness” does not offer any 

supporting documentation, does not state how he arrived at his conclusions, and 

does not explain how he is qualified to make conclusions of a scientific nature, 

LUBA will not find the testimony to constitute substantial evidence.  Id. at 310. In  

 

 Palmer v. Lane County, 29 Or LUBA 436 (1995). LUBA held that on a statement 

in a land use application that “a total of 500,000 to 600,000 yards of rock appears 

to be available at this site depending upon the unexposed rock formations” does 

not constitute “evidence” because there was no support for the statement.  Id. at 

441.  

 

 DLCD v. Curry County, 31 Or LUBA (1996). LUBA disapproved a finding 

stating that “[t]here can be no conflict with nearly permitted users on nearly 

lands.”  LUBA described the finding as “simply a conclusion” that fails to explain 

why such conflicts will not occur.   

 

Statements will also not be considered to be substantial evidence if they are based on 

speculative assumptions about future uses or land or other speculative facts.  See Oregon Shores 

Conservation Coalition v. Coos County, 50 Or LUBA 444 (2005) (citing cases); DLCD v. 

Klamath County, 40 Or LUBA 221, 233 (2001) (finding of compliance with TPR not sustainable 

when those findings are based on speculative unplanned future road improvements).  

 

ATTACHMENT 2

48/332 



Ltr to: City of Newberg Planning Commission 

25 June 2015 

Page 7 

 
  

In this case, the applicable approval criteria, NDC 15.505.110 and 15.235.190, allow the 

director to demand dedications of real property for ROW when that dedication is necessary to 

facilitate provision “for the transportation and access needs of the community.”   

 

In this case, staff’s proposed dedication is not “necessary.” Staff concedes that under 

current zoning and conditions, a driveway in an access easement is adequate to serve the 

property if it remains in a single lot configuration or if it is divided into three or less lots.   

However, staff justifies its demanded road exaction by asserting that “there is no way to 

determine at this point if the lot will be further divided in the future.”  Staff Report at p. 12 of 98.  

To the contrary, any finding in support of an exaction needs to be based on the current 

comprehensive plan designation and zoning map, as well as any planning documents that have 

been adopted for TL 1101.        

 

Staff speculates that tax lot 1101 may be subdivided in the future.  However, CPRD 

confirmed as recently as June 17th 2015 that there are no plans to do so, and that a park will in 

fact be built on the property.  In fact, CPRD has the site listed in their 2010 Heritage Trail 

Strategic Plan as a park named “Friends Park.”  The same park is shown on CPRD’s Heritage 

Trails Phase I Master Plan.”  Thus, given that that the owner of the property as already 

completed planning for the site, it would be speculative to conclude that further partitioning or 

subdivision is planned or needed,  and any discussion of future subdivision is also purely 

speculative.   

 

Staff also notes that “having only one easement for street frontage would constrain the 

potential development of TL 3220-1101.”   However, the current zoning of TL 1101 also 

constrains the potential development of TL 1101, so there is no need to speculate about future 

subdivision of the property.  Even if staff is correct that the site is “large enough to potentially 

contain more than one use,” there are no uses other than a park currently proposed or planned for 

the site.   

  

B.  Comprehensive Plan as Law / Goal 2 Consistency Doctrine  

 

This case also potentially raises the issue of whether information contained in a 

Comprehensive Plan or zoning map can be ignored in favor of new “unofficial” factual 

information that is inconsistent with that map.  The short answer is “No.”  This is sometimes 

referred to as the “Goal 2 consistency” requirement / doctrine.  Most commonly, the issue arises 

when a local government attempts to rely on facts set forth in either “adopted” or “unadopted” 

plans or maps that conflict with facts or maps set forth in the Comprehensive Plan.    

 

The Court of Appeals has addressed this issue in a variety of contacts, and has 

consistently found that the comprehensive plan, zoning maps, and adopted factual information 

controls over inconsistent data, even when the parties all conceded that the inconsistent data is 

more recent and more accurate.  D.S. Parklane Development, Inc. v. Metro, 35 Or LUBA 516 

(1999),  aff’d as modified, 165 Or App 1, 22, 994 P2d 1205 (2000); Residents of Rosemont v. 

Metro, 38 Or LUBA 199 (2000), aff’d in part, rev’d in part,  173 Or App 321, 333-34, 21 P3d 

ATTACHMENT 2

49/332 



Ltr to: City of Newberg Planning Commission 

25 June 2015 

Page 8 

 
  

1108 (2001); 1000 Friends of Oregon v. Metro, 38 Or LUBA 565, aff’d in part, rev’d in part, 

174 Or App 406, 26 P3d 151 (2001) (“Ryland Homes”); 1000 Friends of Oregon v. City of 

Dundee, 203 Or App 207, 124 P3d 1249 (2005).  In the 1000 Friends v. City of Dundee case, the 

court stated:  

 

In sum, a planning decision based on a study contemplated by a 

comprehensive plan but not incorporated into the comprehensive 

plan after the study is carried out is not a planning decision that is 

made on the basis of the comprehensive plan and acknowledged 

planning documents, as is required by Goal 2. D.S. Parklane 

Development, Inc., 165 Or. App. at 22. That is not a matter of 

mere abstract concern. Rather, it goes to the heart of the practical 

application of the land use laws: The comprehensive plan is the 

fundamental document that governs land use planning. Citizens 

must be able to rely on the fact that the acknowledged 

comprehensive plan and information integrated in that plan will 

serve as the basis for land use decisions, rather than running the 

risk of being "sandbagged" by government's reliance on new data 

that is inconsistent with the information on which the 

comprehensive plan was based. LUBA erred in concluding 

otherwise. 

 

To the extent that the staff notes that “if the property was zoned R-1 or R-2, then it would be 

considered very likely to be divided in the future.”  Staff Report at p. 12 of 98.  However, the 

property is zoned CF and that is the limit of what can be considered.         

 

C.   Applicability of Dolan v. City of Tigard. 

 

As the Planning Commission is aware, the U.S. Constitution prohibits a local government 

from taking private property for public use.  A local government is entitled to demand exactions 

to mitigate impacts created by proposed development.  See generally Nollan v. California 

Coastal Comm’n, 483 US 825, 834, 107 SCt 3141 (1987), Dolan v. City of Tigard, 512 US at 

379, 114 S. Ct. 2309 (1994).  Although the analysis needed to support an exaction is complex 

and time consuming, there exists a case from state of Washington case makes a particularly 

noble attempt to break the Nollan/Dolan test down into four separate “bite-size” inquires.  

Burton v. Clark County, 958 P2d 343 (Wash App Div. 2 1998).  Although not necessarily 

binding case law in Oregon, the Burton “four-part test” framework is a good one for explaining 

federal taking jurisprudence to non-lawyers, and for this reason alone we use it here.   

 

1. Step One: Identification of a Public Problem 

 

When a government body requires exaction of a property interest as a condition for 

approval of a development, the exaction will be considered a taking unless it substantially 

advances a legitimate state interest. Nollan v. California Coastal Comm’n, 483 US 825, 834, 107 

ATTACHMENT 2

50/332 



Ltr to: City of Newberg Planning Commission 

25 June 2015 

Page 9 

 
  

SCt 3141 (1987).  Thus, when the government conditions a land-use permit, it must identify a 

public problem or problems that the condition is designed to address. If the government can 

identify only a private problem, or no problem at all, the government lacks a “legitimate state 

interest” or “legitimate public purpose” in regulating the project.  

 

In this case, staff concludes that “having only an access easement for street frontage 

would constrain the potential development of tax lot 3220-1101.”  Note that the issue is not 

whether the current 25 foot wide easement is too small to serve as an access to a nine (9) acre 

park:  staff concedes that it is in fact adequate. Indeed, CPRD previously stated that the easement 

was satisfactory to meet their needs, and it negotiated an arms-length agreement with the 

applicant’s predecessor for that easement.  For this reason, there is no public problem.     

 

2. Step Two:  Show that the Development for Which a Permit is Sought Will 

Create or Exacerbate the Identified Public Problem.  

 

Second, the government must show that the development for which a permit is sought 

will create or exacerbate the identified public problem.  This is the first of two "nexus" issues.  

Under Nollan, there must be a nexus between the development itself and the identified public 

problem; that the necessary relationship will exist if the development will create or exacerbate 

the identified problem.  The necessary relationship will not exist if the development will not 

adversely impact the identified public problem. Thus, even assuming there is a public problem 

due to the existing width of the road, the county needs to show that the development will create 

or exacerbate the identified problem. 

 

In this case, even if it were true that the existing access to TL 1101 is inadequate to meet 

the potential future needs of the CPRD land, the fact that the applicant is building on its land 

does not exacerbate that problem in any way.      

 

3. Step Three:  Establish a Nexus Between the Problem and the Proposed 

Solution. 

 

Third, the government must show that its proposed condition or exaction (which in plain 

terms is just the government's proposed solution to the identified public problem) tends to solve, 

or at least to alleviate, the identified public problem.   This is second aspect of the “nexus” issue: 

the government must show a relationship ("nexus") between the proposed solution and the 

identified problem, and such relationship cannot exist unless the proposed solution has a 

tendency to solve or alleviate the identified problem. As with negligence, a legitimate state 

interest “in the air, so to speak, will not do.” Palsgraf v. Long Island R.R. Co., 162 N.E. 99 (NY 

1928). To meet Nollan's "essential nexus" requirement, the state interest advanced by the 

exaction must be the same one that would be served by outright denial of the development.  

Nollan, 483 U.S. at 834-37, 107 S.Ct. at 3147-49.  

 

In this case, staff has not identified the proposed ROW exaction and oversized street does 

not “have a tendency to solve or alleviate the identified problem,” because no problem exists.  

ATTACHMENT 2

51/332 



Ltr to: City of Newberg Planning Commission 

25 June 2015 

Page 10 

 
  

 

 

 

4.  Step Four:  Establish the Proportionality of the Fee 

The fourth and final step requires the government to show that its proposed solution to 

the identified public problem is “roughly proportional” to that part of the problem that is created 

or exacerbated by the landowner's development. Thus, as already seen, the Dolan Court posed 

the question, “[W]hat is the required degree of connection between [1] the exactions imposed by 

the city and [2] the projected impacts of the proposed development.”   

 

In this case, the applicant would lose two lots if it is required to make the requested 

dedication to the government, even though it is not creating any problem for the current 

development plans for TL 1101.  Staff has not shown that the additional ROW dedication and 

street improvement requirement is “roughly proportional” to any problem created by the 

applicant.   

 

Finally, we wish to preserve the issue that ORS 197.522 allows denial of a land use 

application only in situations where the government cannot fashion reasonable conditions that 

meet applicable land use standards.  In this case, the applicant has already provided a reasonable 

alternative to the “one-size-fits all” approach for which staff advocates.  The applicant proposes 

to dedicate a “Track D” to the city in favor of CPRD and will install a 16' access road on Tract D 

for the benefit of CPRD.   

 

IV. CONCLUSION.   

 

We thank the Planning Commission for its time and attention to this matter.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

ANDREW H. STAMP, P.C. 
 

Andrew H. Stamp 
 

Andrew H. Stamp 

AHS:ahs 

cc: client (Via email)   

  

 

ATTACHMENT 2

52/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

53/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

54/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

55/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

56/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

57/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

58/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

59/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

60/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

61/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

62/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

63/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

64/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

65/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

66/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

67/332 



ATTACHMENT 2

68/332 



ATTACHMENT 3

69/332 



ATTACHMENT 3

70/332 



ATTACHMENT 3

71/332 



ATTACHMENT 3

72/332 



ATTACHMENT 3

73/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

74/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

75/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

76/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

77/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

78/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

79/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

80/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

81/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

82/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

83/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

84/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

85/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

86/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

87/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

88/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

89/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

90/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

91/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

92/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

93/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

94/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

95/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

96/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

97/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

98/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

99/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

100/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

101/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

102/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

103/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

104/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

105/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

106/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

107/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

108/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

109/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

110/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

111/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

112/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

113/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

114/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

115/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

116/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

117/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

118/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

119/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

120/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

121/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

122/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

123/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

124/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

125/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

126/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

127/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

128/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

129/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

130/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

131/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

132/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

133/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

134/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

135/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

136/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

137/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

138/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

139/332 



Community Development Department 
P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
  
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 1 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 
 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION APPEAL STAFF REPORT 

VERIZON CELLULAR TOWER DESIGN REVIEW/VARIANCE 

 

HEARING DATE: August 13, 2015 

FILE NO:  DR2-15-003/VAR-15-001 

REQUEST: Appeal of a design review approval for a new cellular tower & variance approval 

to reduce a setback  

LOCATION: 2401 E. Hancock Street 

TAX LOT: 3220AB-202 

APPLICANT: Proland LLC (representing Verizon Wireless) 

ZONE:  M-2 (Light Industrial) 

OVERLAYS: Airport Overlay 

CONTENTS 

Order 2015-19 with 

Exhibit A: Findings 

Exhibit B: Conditions 

 

Attachments: 

1. Aerial Photo 

2. Site Plan 

3. Appeal application 

4. Approval decision 7.2.15 

5. Project application 

6. Public Comments received  

 

 

140/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 2 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

 

Description of application:   

The applicant has requested design review approval for a new 70 foot tall cellular communications 

tower, with related ground equipment. The code requires a 21 foot setback from existing buildings on 

the site; the cell tower will meet this on the south side but will only be setback 11.5 feet from a building 

on the north side of the tower, so they have requested a variance to the setback standard. 

Process:  
 

The Design Review/Variance request is a Type II application and follows the procedures in Newberg 

Development Code 15.100.030.  Following a 14 day public comment period, the Community 

Development Director makes a decision on the application based on the criteria listed in the attached 

findings.  The Director’s decision is final unless appealed.  

 

The application was approved with conditions by the Community Development Director, and appealed 

to the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission hearing is a new hearing, so new testimony is 

allowed to be entered into the record. The Planning Commission can either affirm the staff approval, 

affirm the staff approval with modified conditions, or deny the application. 

 

Important dates related to this application are as follows: 

 

Noticing: 

1. 5/27/15: The Community Development Director deemed the application complete. 

2. 5/22/15: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 500 feet of the site. 

3. 5/25/15: The applicant posted notice on the site. 

4. 7/2/15:  The Community Development Director issued a decision on the application. 

5.  7/16/15: The decision was appealed to the Planning Commission. 

6. 7/2415: The city mailed notice of the appeal hearing to the property owners within 500 

feet of the site. 

7. 7/29/15: Notice was posted in The Newberg Graphic. 

8. 8/13/15: The Planning Commission will hold a hearing to review the proposal. 

 

Site Information: 
 

The site is approximately 1.4 acres and contains three existing industrial buildings with a mix of 

businesses. The site is relatively flat, with a slight slope to the south. The site was developed in 2008, 

and meets current Development Code standards for parking, landscaping and setbacks.  

 

Surrounding uses:  

 North/northwest - commercial development (dentist, retail, office), C-2 zone.  

 East – commercial development (mini-storage) on northern section, undeveloped land (potential 

new mini-storage) on southern section, C-2 zone. 

 West – undeveloped commercial land, C-2 zone. 

 South – commercial development (Wilco farm store), C-2 zone. 

141/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 3 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

 

Existing conditions: The site has vehicle access from Hancock Street, which is classified as a local road.  

An 18” stormwater conveyance pipe is located in Hancock Street and can accommodate the additional 

runoff created by this development.  No new water or wastewater services are proposed.   

 

Agency Comments: 
The application was routed to several public agencies for review and comment.  Comments and 

recommendations from city departments have been incorporated into the findings and conditions.  The 

agency comments are summarized below; the full text is included in Attachment 3.   

Federal Aviation Administration (FAA): The FAA completed a “Determination of No Hazard 

to Air Navigation” letter, with conditions regarding notification (when construction is completed, 

or if project abandoned) and future changes. 

Sportsman Airpark commented that the FAA “Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation” 

conditions need to part of the approval conditions. 

Oregon Dept. of Aviation (ODA): The ODA commented on June 8, 2015 that, based on their 

preliminary review, the proposed cell tower would cause a disruption to the operations of the 

Sportsman Airpark, specifically the approach/departure procedures from runway 17-35. In 

addition, due to its location and height, the applicant would be required to file a FAA form 7460-

1 with the ODA as required in OAR 738-70. ODA recommended that the cell tower be relocated 

or lowered away from the approach/departure to ensure safety to air navigation. 

Based on the June 8th ODA comments and by requirements in the Newberg Development Code, 

the applicant was conditioned to: 

ODA approval: File a FAA form 7460-1 with the ODA, and provide a written statement 

from the Oregon Department of Aviation (ODA) that the application has been found to 

comply with the applicable regulations of the Department, or a statement that no such 

compliance is required. 

The applicant submitted information about the proposal to the ODA for their review. On July 9, 

2015 the ODA issued a second letter. After conducting an aeronautical study of the 70 foot tall 

proposed structure, ODA commented that: 

 Notice to the FAA is required. The structure does exceed Obstruction Standards of OAR 

738-70-0100 and exceeds FAA FAR 77.9 for RWY 17. 

 Any changes to the original application will void this determination. 

 ODA does not object with conditions to the construction described in this proposal. This 

determination does not constitute ODA approval or disapproval of the physical 

development involved in the proposal. It is a determination with respect to the safe and 

efficient use of navigable airspace by aircraft and with respect to the safety of persons 

and property on the ground. 

 Marking and lighting are necessary for aviation safety due to proximity to the Newberg 

airport. We recommend it be installed and maintained in accordance with FAA Advisory 

Circular AC70/7460-1K Change 2. 

 The ODA no longer recommended that the tower height be lowered or that the tower be 

relocated. 

 

142/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 4 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

  

Public Comments:  

As of the writing of this report, the city has received several written public comments. They are 

summarized below, and the full comments are included in Attachment 6.   

One comment was concerned about possible long-term health risks to other people in the vicinity 

(including a day care facility) from close proximity to a cell phone tower, and urged that the city 

not grant a variance to the setback standard.  

Another comment was also opposed to approving the variance and design review due to close 

proximity to a high density residential area and day care facility, and concerns that they could be 

adversely affected by radiation from the tower. They were also concerned about the proximity of 

the airport, and commented that the 21-foot setback was established to protect the privacy, value 

and efficacy of surrounding businesses. 

The third comment was concerned about two potential public safety issues: that the height of the 

tower could pose a hazard to the airport, and that radiation from the tower could be a health 

hazard to people near the tower. They thought that the applicant should be required to provide 

documentation that the tower would not create hazards for the airport or radiation hazards for 

nearby people. They were also concerned about the size of the variance request, and thought that 

such a large reduction in the standard (nearly 50%) could create a negative precedent that would 

be cited by other applicants in the future, to the detriment of the community as a whole. 

Appeal application: 

The appellant, Marsha Matthiesen, has listed two main objections to the Community Development 

Director’s approval. The objections are summarized below. 

1. Long term risk from radiation: The appellant stated that surrounding uses include the Family Pet 

Clinic and a daycare center. These businesses will be exposed to long-term risks from radiation, 

the effects of which have not been fully determined. 

2. Airport safety: The appellant stated that small planes that come into Sportsmans Airpark often 

need to adjust planned flight patterns in order to land safely. 

Issues and Analysis summary: 

1. Radiation from cell towers: The Newberg Development Code does not directly regulate radiation 

and emissions from cellular communication towers. These issues are regulated by the Federal 

Communication Commission (FCC). The Development Code requires that the following statement be a 

condition of approval: 

15.445.210 Conditions of approval. 

The following conditions of approval must be met prior to issuance of a building permit for 

any telecommunications facility: 

A. Agency Statements. The applicant shall provide the following information in writing from 

the appropriate responsible official: 

143/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 5 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

1. Confirmation that a Federal Communications Commission (FCC) antenna structure 

registration application (FCC 854 Form) has been approved, or a statement that an 

application is not required. 

The applicant will be required to show that they have received FCC approval for their proposed 

structure.  

2. Proximity to the airport: The applicant is required to show that the proposed tower meets all Federal 

Aviation Administration (FAA) and Oregon Department of Aviation (ODA) requirements before a 

building permit will be approved for the cellular tower. The FAA has issued a “Determination of No 

Hazard to Air Navigation” letter with some conditions, which will be conditions of approval for the 

project. The ODA issued a letter on June 8, 2015 saying that, based on their preliminary review, the 

tower would create a problem for airport operations and required additional review by the ODA. The 

ODA later issued another letter on July 9, 2015 saying that, based on an aeronautical study, they no 

longer objected to the proposed structure provided it met conditions for marking and lighting. These 

conditions will be made part of the conditions of approval. 

 3. Variance request: There was a concern expressed that the variance approval could create a 

precedent for other future variances. A variance application is unique to a specific project on a specific 

site, however, so each variance is unique and does not set a precedent for other decisions.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that following motion: 

Move to adopt Planning Commission Order 2015-19, which approves the requested design 

review/variance application as conditioned. The findings and conditions of the original approval have 

been modified to include the updated comments/conditions from the ODA. 

144/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 6 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER 2015-19    

 

 AN ORDER APPROVING DR2-15-003/VAR-15-001 FOR A CELLULAR 

COMMUNICATIONS TOWER AT 2401 E. HANCOCK STREET, YAMHILL COUNTY 

TAX LOT 3220AB-202.   

RECITALS 
 

1. ProLand LLC, representing Verizon Wireless, submitted an application for design review 

approval for a cellular communications tower, and a variance application to reduce the setback 

requirement from a building on the site. The site is located at 2401 E. Hancock Street, Yamhill 

County tax lot 3220AB-202.  

2. After proper notice, the Community Development Director approved the application with 

conditions on July 2, 2016. 

3. On July 16, 2015 the decision was appealed to the Planning Commission by the appellant, 

Marsha Mathiessen. 

4. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on August 13, 2015 to 

consider the application.  The Commission considered testimony, and deliberated. 

5. The Newberg Planning Commission finds that the application meets the applicable criteria as 

shown in the findings shown in Exhibit “A”. 

The Newberg Planning Commission orders as follows: 
 

1. The design review/variance application DR2-15-003/VAR-15-001 is hereby approved, subject to 

the conditions contained in Exhibit “B”.  Exhibit "B" is hereby adopted and by this reference 

incorporated. 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “A” are hereby adopted.  Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted and by 

this reference incorporated. 

3. This order shall be effective August 28, 2015 unless appealed prior to that date. 

145/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 7 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

4. This order shall expire one year after the effective date above if the applicant does not obtain 

building permits for this project, unless an extension is granted per Newberg Development Code 

15.220.020(C). 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 13th day of August, 2015. 
 

        ATTEST: 

 

Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 
 

List of Exhibits: 

 Exhibit “A”: Findings  

 Exhibit “B”: Conditions 

146/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 8 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

 

 Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Order 2015-19 

Findings –File DR2-15-003/VAR-15-001 

Verizon Cellular Tower 
 

A. Design Review; Criteria That Apply - Newberg Development Code  15.220.050(B): 

1. Design compatibility. The proposed design review request incorporates an 

architectural design which is compatible with and/or superior to existing or proposed 

uses and structures in the surrounding area.  This shall include, but not be limited to, 

building architecture, materials, colors, roof design, landscape design, and signage. 

Finding: There are specific design standards for cell towers that will be addressed below. The tower 

will be lit and painted in accordance with the FAA and ODA regulations.  

2. Parking and On-Site Circulation. Parking areas shall meet the requirements of 

NMC 15.440.010. Parking studies may be required to determine if adequate parking 

and circulation are provided for uses not specifically identified in NMC 15.440.010. 

Provisions shall be made to provide efficient and adequate on-site circulation without 

using the public streets as part of the parking lot circulation pattern. Parking areas 

shall be designed so that vehicles can efficiently enter and exit the public streets with a 

minimum impact on the functioning of the public street. 

Finding: The site has existing industrial buildings with adequate parking. The cell tower application 

does not remove any existing parking spaces.    

3. Setbacks and General Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 

15.415.010 through 15.415.060 dealing with height restrictions and public access; and 

NMC 15.405.010 through 15.405.040 and NMC 15.410.010 through 15.410.070 

dealing with setbacks, coverage, vision clearance, and yard requirements. 

Finding: The cell tower criteria have specific setback standards, which will be addressed below. The M-

2 zone does not have a set height limit; the actual height limit is set by the Airport Overlay zone, which 

is addressed in a finding below.  The cell tower proposal does not create a vision clearance issue on the 

site, and does meet the standard M-2 setbacks. 

4. Landscaping Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 15.420.010 

dealing with landscape requirements and landscape screening. 

Finding: The existing site has 16.13% landscaping, which exceeds the 15% landscaping minimum. The 

cell tower proposal will remove 551 square feet of landscaping, so the post-development site would have 

15.27% landscaping and still meets the minimum landscaping standard. Following compliance with 

design review conditions, the landscape plan and parking lot complies with NMC 15.420.010.  All areas 

subject to the final design review plan and not otherwise improved are landscaped.   

5. Signs. Signs shall comply with NMC 15.435.010 et seq. dealing with signs. 

147/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 9 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

Finding: No signs are included in this review. If the FCC and FAA require any signage then the 

applicant will install the required signs. 

6. Manufactured Home, Mobile Home and RV Parks. Manufactured home, mobile 

home, and recreational vehicle parks shall also comply with the standards listed in 

NMC 15.445.050 et seq. in addition to the other criteria listed in this section. 

Finding: Not applicable. The development proposal is not a manufactured home, mobile home, or RV 

park. 

7. Zoning District Compliance. The proposed use shall be listed as a permitted or 

conditionally permitted use in the zoning district in which it is located as found in 

NMC 15.304.010 through 15.328.040. Through this site review process, the director 

may make a determination that a use is determined to be similar to those listed in the 

applicable zoning district, if it is not already specifically listed. In this case, the director 

shall make a finding that the use shall not have any different or more detrimental 

effects upon the adjoining neighborhood area than those specifically listed. 

Finding: The site is zoned M-2 (Light Industrial). A cellular communication tower is an allowed use in 

the M-2 zone. It is more than 2,000 feet from the nearest cell tower, so it does not require a conditional 

use permit.  

8. Subdistrict Compliance. Properties located within subdistricts shall comply with the 

provisions of those subdistricts located in NMC 15.340.010 through 15.348.060. 

Finding: The proposed tower location is within the Airport Overlay subdistrict, Transitional Surface. 

This subdistrict limits the height of the proposed structure to approximately 80-90 feet, as interpreted by 

city staff. The proposed tower is 70 feet tall, so it appears to meet the height limits. The Development 

Code also requires notice to the FAA to verify that the structure is below the height limits. The applicant 

supplied notice to the FAA, and received a “Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation” letter, 

which included conditions such as notifying the FAA when construction was complete or the design 

changed. The Development Code criteria below for cellular towers have more specific requirements for 

FAA and ODA notification when a cellular tower is proposed, so the specific FAA and ODA conditions 

will be addressed below in the cellular tower criteria. 

 

9. Alternative Circulation, Roadway Frontage Improvements and Utility 

Improvements. Where applicable, new developments shall provide for access for 

vehicles and pedestrians to adjacent properties which are currently developed or will be 

developed in the future. This may be accomplished through the provision of local 

public streets or private access and utility easements. At the time of development of a 

parcel, provisions shall be made to develop the adjacent street frontage in accordance 

with city street standards and the standards contained in the transportation plan. At the 

discretion of the city, these improvements may be deferred through use of a deferred 

improvement agreement or other form of security. 

Finding: The project meets the applicable development code and municipal code requirements as 

detailed below and as conditioned.  No transportation improvements are proposed.  Access to the site is 

provided from Hancock Street, and is adequate.  No water or wastewater connections or improvements 

are proposed.   

148/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 10 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

 

Stormwater:  NMC 13.25.040 No person shall undertake a ground disturbing project without 

having provided erosion and sediment controls that address erosion caused by wind or rain.  

13.25.260 & 13.25.270 Projects that create a new impervious areas of 500 square feet or more 

shall use techniques or create stormwater facilities that maintain the water quality and 

beneficial uses of the receiving watercourse.  13.25.280 Prior to an applicant receiving a 

permit for a project, the director shall determine the stormwater requirements of the project.  

They shall provide a summary of the project, design flow calculations, and proposed methods 

for treating stormwater to the director for review and approval in accordance with 

requirements specified in the design standards manual. 

Findings: The developer has not proposed any new stormwater connections or facilities.  It is assumed 

that the new impervious area surface water will surface flow to existing stormwater infrastructure on the 

site.  It appears that this development will add more than 500 sq. ft. of net new impervious area.   

Approval of this project is conditioned on the applicant meeting the city’s stormwater code (ordinance 

No. 2021-2754) and the engineering standards manual.  A possible way to meet this ordinance is to 

reduce the net new impervious area to be less than 500 sq. ft.  Open graded, pervious rock surfaces are 

considered to be pervious.  Alternatively, stormwater facilities may be installed per the engineering 

standards manual.  If net new impervious area is less than 500 sq. ft., submit a memo summarizing the 

impervious area surface area calculations, including a description of pervious materials proposed to be 

installed.  If net new impervious area is more than 500 sq. ft., submit a final engineer's storm water 

report per the City of Newberg Engineering Design Standards Manual.  All onsite storm drain and 

detention/water quality facilities to be private and maintained by private property owner with storm 

water maintenance agreement.   

 

10. Traffic Study Improvements. If a traffic study is required, improvements identified 

in the traffic study shall be implemented as required by the director. 

Finding:  A traffic study was not required for this project, as it is only expected to generate a few trips 

to the site. 

 

B. Cellular tower; Criteria That Apply - Newberg Development Code  15.220.050(B): 

15.445.190 Approval criteria. 

New transmission towers or replacement of existing towers may be allowed, based on findings 

by the approval authority that the following criteria are met: 

A. A good faith effort has been made to demonstrate that an existing tower cannot 

accommodate the proposed antennas and/or transmitter. 

Finding: The applicant did contact the owners of the existing towers in the area about colocation, as 

required. The applicant also included a RF study letter, which noted that the existing tower sites in 

Newberg were too far away from east Newberg to improve service in that area. Improving service 

coverage is an important consideration, as the public increasingly relies on cellular phones instead of 

149/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 11 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

land-line phones for general communication and for emergency (911) calls. The applicant has made a 

good faith effort to demonstrate that existing towers cannot accommodate the proposed project, 

primarily because existing towers are not close enough to east Newberg to improve service coverage in 

that area. 

B. The tower and associate structures meet the setback, landscaping, parking and vegetation 

requirements of NMC 15.445.220. 

Finding: The proposed tower has landscaping around the ground equipment area. Some shrubs need to 

be added along the western edge of the fenced area to buffer the view of the equipment. They are to be 

evergreen, at least 4 feet tall, and spaced no more than 5 feet on center. As conditioned, the proposal 

meets the landscaping and parking requirements. The tower meet the 21 foot setback requirement on all 

sides except the north, where it is 9’5” from the existing building. The applicant has requested a 

variance to the setback from this northern building; if the variance is approved then the application will 

meet this criterion. 

C. The proposed tower has been structurally designed to accommodate the maximum number 

of additional users technically practicable. 

Finding: The drawings demonstrate that the tower has been designed to accommodate additional 

antennas.  

D. The tower has minimal visual impact on the environment. 

Finding: The proposed tower is on an industrial site, and matches the character of the surroundings. At 

70 feet tall, it is relatively short for a cellular tower which will reduce its impact on the environment. It 

will be painted and/or lit as required by the FAA and ODA to provide proper visibility for air 

navigation. 

E. The tower meets the design review provisions of NMC 15.220.030. 

Finding: As noted in the design review findings above, the proposal meets the design review provisions 

of the NMC 15.220.030. 

F. The tower does not intrude into the airport imaginary surface areas as defined in 

NMC 15.05.030. [Ord. 2536, 11-6-00. Code 2001 § 151.671.] 

Conditions of approval: 

2. Confirmation that the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has been notified and 

that the facility has not been found to be a hazard to air navigation under FAA 

regulations, or a statement that compliance is not required. 

3. A statement from the Oregon State Department of Aviation (OSDA) that the 

application has been found to comply with the applicable regulations of the 

Department, or a statement that no such compliance is required. 

 

Finding: The applicant notified the FAA about the proposed project and received a “Determination of 

No Hazard to Air Navigation” letter, which included conditions regarding notification to the FAA when 

the project is completed, or abandoned, or changed. The FAA conditions in the “Determination of No 

Hazard to Air Navigation” letter shall be made conditions of approval for this project. 

 

150/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.220
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15220.html#15.220.030
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=13
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg1505.html#15.05.030
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2536.pdf


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 12 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

The Oregon Dept. of Aviation (ODA) was notified of the application and commented on June 8, 2015 

that, based on their preliminary review, the proposed cell tower would cause a disruption to the 

operations of the Sportsman Airpark, specifically the approach/departure procedures from runway 17-

35. In addition, due to its location and height, the applicant would be required to file a FAA form 7460-1 

with the ODA as required in OAR 738-70. ODA recommended that the cell tower be relocated or 

lowered away from the approach/departure to ensure safety to air navigation.  

 

The applicant submitted information about the proposal to the ODA for their review. On July 9, 2015 

the ODA issued a second letter. After conducting an aeronautical study of the 70 foot tall proposed 

structure, ODA commented that: 

 Notice to the FAA is required. The structure does exceed Obstruction Standards of OAR 738-70-

0100 and exceeds FAA FAR 77.9 for RWY 17. 

 Any changes to the original application will void this determination. 

 ODA does not object with conditions to the construction described in this proposal. This 

determination does not constitute ODA approval or disapproval of the physical development 

involved in the proposal. It is a determination with respect to the safe and efficient use of 

navigable airspace by aircraft and with respect to the safety of persons and property on the 

ground. 

 Marking and lighting are necessary for aviation safety due to proximity to the Newberg airport. 

We recommend it be installed and maintained in accordance with FAA Advisory Circular 

AC70/7460-1K Change 2. 

 The ODA no longer recommended that the tower height be lowered or that the tower be 

relocated. 

 

15.445.200 Application requirements. 

An application for approval of a Type II or Type III decision for a radio or television 

transmission tower shall contain at least the following information before it is complete: 

A. Site Plan. Site plan or plans to scale specifying the location of tower(s), guy anchors (if 

any), transmission building and/or other accessory uses, access, parking, fences, landscaped 

areas, and adjacent land uses. Such plan shall also demonstrate compliance with 

NMC 15.445.220(B) and (C). 

B. Landscape Plan. Landscape plan to scale indicating size, spacing and type of plantings 

required in NMC 15.445.220(H). 

C. Engineer’s Report. Report from a professional engineer licensed in the State of Oregon, 

documenting the following: 

1. Tower height and design, including technical, engineering, economic, and other 

pertinent factors governing selection of the proposed design. A cross-section of the 

tower structure shall be included. 

2. Total anticipated capacity of the structure, including number and types 

of antennas which can be accommodated. 

3. Evidence of structural integrity of the tower structure as required by the building 

official. 

151/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=238
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=4
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.220
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.220
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=57
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=57


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 13 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

4. Failure characteristics of the tower and demonstration that the site and setbacks are of 

adequate size to contain debris. 

5. Ice hazards and mitigation measures which have been employed, including increased 

setbacks and/or de-icing equipment. 

6. Specific design and reconstruction plans indicating the means by which the 

shared use provisions of this section will be met. This submission is required only in the 

event that the applicant intends to meet the shared use requirements of this section by 

subsequent reinforcement and reconstruction of the tower. 

7. The requirement of subsection (C)(6) of this section may be deferred if: 

a. At the time the building permit for the tower is issued, there are no applications 

before the FCC that could use the tower; or 

b. The applications which are before the FCC have contractual arrangements for 

the use of other towers. 

D. Letter of Intent. 

1. The applicant shall provide a letter of intent to lease excess space on the 

tower structure and to lease additional applicant-controlled excess land on the tower site 

when the shared-use potential of the tower is absorbed, if structurally and technically 

possible. A reasonable pro rata charge may be made for shared use, consistent with an 

appropriate sharing of construction, financing and maintenance costs. Fees may also be 

charged for any structural or RF changes necessitated by such shared use. Such sharing 

shall be a condition of approval if approval is granted. 

2. The applicant shall base charges on generally accepted accounting principles and 

shall explain the elements included in the charge, including, but not limited to, a pro 

rata share of actual site selection and processing costs, land costs, site design, 

construction and maintenance costs, finance costs, return on equity, and depreciation. 

E. Tower Capacity. The applicant shall quantify the additional tower capacity anticipated, 

including the approximate number and types of antennas. The applicant shall also describe 

any limitations on the ability of the tower to accommodate other uses, e.g., radio frequency 

interference, mass height, frequency or other characteristics. The applicant shall describe the 

technical options available to overcome those limitations and reasons why the technical 

options considered were not chosen to be incorporated. The approval authority shall approve 

those limitations if they cannot be overcome by reasonable technical means. 

F. Evidence of Lack of Space. Evidence of the lack of space on all suitable existing towers to 

locate the proposed antenna and of the lack of space on existing tower sites to construct a 

tower for the proposed antenna. 

G. Written Authorization. Written authorization from adjoining property owners if needed, 

under NMC 15.445.220(C). 

152/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=173
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=173
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=239
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=238
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.220


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 14 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

H. Written Evidence. Written evidence from the Federal Communications Commission related 

to a request for approval of a reduction in the capacity of the proposed tower under 

NMC 15.445.220(D), if needed. [Ord. 2536, 11-6-00. Code 2001 § 151.672.] 

Finding: The application include site plans, a landscaping plan, an engineer’s report, a letter of intent to 

lease space, information about the tower capacity, and a good faith effort about lack of space. Written 

authorization from adjoining property owners was not required, as the tower does not have guy wires. 

The applicant did not request FCC approval for a reduction in the capacity of the tower. 

15.445.210 Conditions of approval. 

The following conditions of approval must be met prior to issuance of a building permit for 

any telecommunications facility: 

A. Agency Statements. The applicant shall provide the following information in writing from 

the appropriate responsible official: 

1. Confirmation that a Federal Communications Commission (FCC) antenna structure 

registration application (FCC 854 Form) has been approved, or a statement that an 

application is not required. 

2. Confirmation that the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has been notified and 

that the facility has not been found to be a hazard to air navigation under FAA 

regulations, or a statement that compliance is not required. 

3. A statement from the Oregon State Department of Aviation (OSDA) that the 

application has been found to comply with the applicable regulations of the Department, 

or a statement that no such compliance is required. 

4. The director may waive the statements in subsections (A)(1) through (3) of this section 

when the applicant demonstrates that a good faith, timely effort was made to obtain such 

responses but that no such response was forthcoming, provided the applicant conveys 

any response received; and further, provided any subsequent response that is received is 

conveyed to the approval authority as soon as possible. 

Findings: The FCC requirement will be made a conditions of approval. The applicant has furnished 

confirmation that the FAA has been notified and found the proposal to not be a hazard to air navigation, 

subject to certain conditions. The FAA conditions will be added to the design review conditions of 

approval. The applicant has also furnished confirmation that the ODA has been notified and found that 

the proposal meets ODA requirements, subject to certain conditions for marking and lighting. The ODA 

conditions will be added to the design review conditions of approval. 

15.445.220 Installation standards. 

A. Shared Use of Existing Towers. The applicant shall make a good faith effort to 

substantially demonstrate that no existing tower can accommodate the applicant’s proposed 

antenna/transmitter as described below. 

1. The applicant shall contact the owners of all existing towers, of a height roughly equal 

to or greater than the height of the tower proposed by the applicant. A list shall be 

provided of all owners contacted, the date of such contact, and the form and content of 

such contact. 

153/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=77
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.220
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2536.pdf
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=77
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 15 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

2. Such contact shall be made in a timely manner; that is, sufficiently before the filing of 

an application for a hearing to include a response into the application when filed. 

a. Where an existing tower is known to have capacity for additional antennas of the 

sort proposed, the application for a new tower shall not be deemed complete until 

the owner of the existing tower responds. Failure of a listed owner to respond shall 

not be relevant to the approval authority if a timely, good faith effort was made to 

obtain a response and a response was not received within 30 days of the request. 

b. The director shall maintain and provide, on request, records of responses from 

each owner. 

c. Once an owner demonstrates an antenna of the sort proposed by 

the applicant cannot be accommodated on the owner’s tower as described below, 

the owner need not be contacted by future applicants for antennas of the sort 

proposed. 

3. The applicant shall provide the following information from each owner contacted: 

a. Identification of the site by location, tax lot number, existing uses, and tower 

height. 

b. Whether each such tower could structurally accommodate the antenna proposed 

by the applicant without requiring structural changes be made to the tower. To 

enable the owner to respond, the applicant shall provide each such owner with the 

height, length, weight, and other relevant data about the proposed antenna. 

c. Whether each such tower could structurally accommodate the 

proposed antenna if structural changes were made, not including totally rebuilding 

the tower. If so, the owner shall specify in general terms what structural changes 

would be required. 

d. If structurally able, would shared use by such existing tower be precluded for 

reasons related to RF interference. If so, the owner shall describe in general terms 

what changes in either the existing or proposed antenna would be required to 

accommodate the proposed tower, if at all. 

e. If shared use is possible based on subsections (A)(3)(a) through (d) of this 

section, the fee an owner of an existing tower would charge for such shared use. 

4. Shared use is not precluded simply because a reasonable fee for shared use is charged, 

or because of reasonable costs necessary to adapt the existing and proposed uses to a 

shared tower. The approval authority may consider expert testimony to determine 

whether the fee and costs are reasonable. Costs exceeding new tower development are 

presumed unreasonable. 

Finding: As noted above, the applicant contacted the owners of existing towers, and made a good faith 

effort to demonstrate that no existing tower can accommodate the proposed project. 

B. Tower Setbacks. 

154/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=239
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 16 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

1. Only one tower per lot is authorized. Towers shall be set back from any 

existing structure on the site, abutting properties, and public rights-of-way a minimum 

distance equal to 30 percent of the height of the tower, measured from the base of the 

tower to the structure, abutting property or public right-of-way. All towers shall be set 

back from a residential zone a distance equal to or greater than 100 percent of the tower 

height, measured from the base of the tower to the nearest property line of a residentially 

zoned lot. The setback requirements of this section shall not apply towards: 

a. Antennas incorporated into, and no more than 18 feet above, existing or 

new buildings; 

b. Antennas incorporated into, and no more than 18 feet above, existing structures; 

c. Antenna support structures incorporated into, and no more than 18 feet above, 

existing or new buildings. 

2. Towers must meet all setback, design and landscape requirements of the code. 

3. No new tower may be installed closer than 2,000 feet from any existing or proposed 

tower, unless approved through the Type III conditional use permit process. 

Finding: The tower is 70 feet tall, so the required setback from abutting properties, public rights-of-way 

and adjacent structures is 21 feet. The tower setbacks exceed the required setback from abutting 

properties and public rights-of-way, and meets the setback from the southern adjacent building. It does 

not meet the setback from the northern building (has a 9’5” setback), so the applicant has requested a 

variance to the setback from this building. If the variance is approved then this criterion is met. There 

are no other towers within 2,000 feet of this proposed tower. 

C. Guy Setback. 

1. Guy anchors shall be set back a minimum of 25 feet from any property line, public 

property or street abutting the site. 

2. A guy anchor may be located on an adjoining property when: 

a. The owner of the adjoining property on which it is to be placed authorizes it in 

writing; and 

b. The guy anchor meets the requirements of subsection (C)(2)(a) of this section as 

to all other setback requirements. 

c. Guy anchors may be located within required landscape areas. 

Finding: There are no guy wires on the tower. 

D. Required Sharing of New Towers. All new towers shall be designed to structurally 

accommodate the maximum number of additional users technically practicable, but in no case 

less than the following: 

155/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=25
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=81
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 17 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

1. For television antenna towers, at least three high-power television antennas and one 

microwave facility or two FM antennas, and at least one two-way radio antenna for 

every 10 feet of the tower over 200 feet. 

2. For any other towers, at least one two-way radio antenna for every 10 feet of the 

tower, or at least one two-way radio antenna for every 20 feet of the tower and at least 

one microwave facility. 

3. Such other combination as found by the approval authority to provide the maximum 

possible number of foreseeable users. 

a. Such requirements may be reduced if the Federal 

Communications Commission provides a written statement that no more licenses for 

those broadcast frequencies that could use the tower will be available in the foreseeable 

future. 

b. Such requirements may be reduced if the size of the tower required significantly 

exceeds the size of the existing towers in the area and would create an unusually onerous 

visual impact that would dominate and alter the visual character of the area when 

compared to the impact of other existing towers. This provision is only to be applied in 

unusual circumstances not resulting from the applicant’s action or site selection unless 

no other site is possible. 

4. Additional antennas and accessory uses to existing antennas may be added to an existing 

tower, under a Type I application, if the existing tower meets the setback and landscaping 

requirements of subsections (B), (C) and (G) of this section. Accessory uses shall include only 

such buildings and facilities necessary for transmission function and satellite ground stations 

associated with them, but shall not include broadcast studios, offices, vehicle storage areas, 

nor other similar uses not necessary for the transmission function. Accessory uses may 

include studio facilities for emergency broadcast purposes or for other special, limited 

purposes found by the approval authority not to create significant additional impacts nor to 

require construction of additional buildings or facilities exceeding 25 percent of the floor area 

of other permitted buildings. 

Finding: The proposed tower is not a television antenna tower or a two-way radio antenna. It has been 

designed to allow additional cellular antennas. 

5. If a new tower is approved, the applicant shall: 

a. Record the letter of intent required in NMC 15.445.200(D) in miscellaneous deed 

records of the office of the county recorder; 

b. Respond in a timely, comprehensive manner to a request for information from a 

potential shared use applicant required under subsection (A) of this section; 

c. Negotiate in good faith for shared use by third parties; and 

d. Allow shared use where the third party seeking such use agrees in writing to pay 

reasonable pro rata charges for sharing, including all charges necessary to modify the 

tower and transmitters to accommodate shared use, but not total tower reconstruction, 

156/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=238
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=238
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=238
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=77
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=21
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=4
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=4
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=4
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.200
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 18 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

and to observe whatever technical requirements are necessary to allow 

shared use without creating interference. 

e. Grounds for Suspension or Revocation. 

i. Willful, knowing failure of an owner whose tower was approved after November 6, 

2000, to comply with the requirement of subsections (D)(5)(a) through (d) of this 

section shall be grounds for suspension or revocation of the use. Following report of 

such failure, the director shall schedule a hearing to determine whether 

the use should be suspended or revoked. The hearing shall be processed as a Type 

III public hearing before the planning commission. 

ii. Such conditions shall run with the land and be binding on subsequent purchasers 

of the tower site. 

Finding: These conditions will become conditions of approval. 

E. Visual Impact. The applicant shall demonstrate that the tower can be expected to have the least 

visual impact on the environment, taking into consideration technical, engineering, economic and 

other pertinent factors. Towers shall be painted and lighted as follows: 

1. Towers 200 feet or less in height shall be painted in accordance with regulations of the 

Federal Aviation Administration and/or Oregon State Department of Aviation. Where such 

regulations do not apply, towers shall be camouflaged. All new towers and antennas must 

either be camouflaged or employ appropriate stealth technologies that are visually compatible 

with a host building or structure, or the surrounding natural environment. The type of 

camouflage may include trees, flagpoles, bell towers, smoke stacks, steeples; however, other 

types of camouflage may be approved at the discretion of the decision making body. 

2. Towers more than 200 feet in height shall be painted in accordance with regulations of the 

Federal Aviation Administration and the Oregon State Department of Aviation. 

3. Towers shall be illuminated as required by the Federal Aviation Administration and the 

Oregon State Department of Aviation. 

4. Towers shall be the minimum height necessary to provide parity with existing similar tower-

supported antennas and shall be freestanding where the negative visual effect is less than 

would be created by use of a guyed tower. 

Finding: The proposed tower is less than 200 feet tall, and will be painted and/or lit as required by the 

FAA and ODA to ensure adequate visibility for air navigation. The tower is freestanding, not guyed. 

F. Parking. A minimum of two parking spaces shall be provided on each site; an additional parking 

space for each two employees shall be provided at facilities which require on-site personnel. 

The director may authorize the joint use of parking facilities subject to the requirements of 

NMC 15.440.050. 

Finding: The site has existing parking spaces for the industrial buildings. The parking for the cellular 

tower will only be used occasionally by maintenance personnel, so it is reasonable for the cellular tower 

to share the existing parking on the site. There are no on-site personnel for the cellular tower. 

157/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=229
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=59
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=59
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=146
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216.2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15440.html#15.440.050


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 19 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

G. Vegetation. Existing landscaping on the site shall be preserved to the greatest practical extent. 

The applicant shall provide a site plan showing existing significant vegetation to be removed, and 

vegetation to be replanted to replace that lost. 

H. Landscaping. Landscape material shall include the following: 

1. For towers 200 feet tall or less, a 20-foot-wide landscape buffer is required immediately 

adjacent to the structure containing the telecommunications facility. At least one row of 

evergreen trees or shrubs, not less than four feet high at the time of planting, and spaced not 

more than 15 feet apart, shall be provided within the landscape buffer. Shrubs should be of a 

variety which can be expected to grow to form a continuous hedge at least five feet in height 

within two years of planting. Trees and shrubs in the vicinity of guy wires shall be of a kind 

that would not exceed 20 feet in height or would not affect the stability of the guys, should they 

be uprooted, and shall not obscure visibility of the anchor from the transmission building or 

security facilities and staff. 

2. For towers more than 200 feet tall, a 40-foot-wide landscape buffer shall be provided 

immediately adjacent to the structure containing the telecommunications facility. Provide at 

least one row of evergreen shrubs spaced not more than five feet apart which will grow to form 

a continuous hedge at least five feet in height within two years of planting; one row of 

deciduous trees, not less than one-and-one-half-inch caliper measured three feet from the 

ground at the time of planting, and spaced not more than 20 feet apart; and at least one row of 

evergreen trees, not less than four feet at the time of planting, and spaced not more than 15 

feet apart. Trees and shrubs in the vicinity of guy wires shall be of a kind that would not 

exceed 20 feet in height or would not affect the stability of the guys, should they be uprooted, 

and shall not obscure visibility of the anchor from the transmission building or security 

facilities and staff. 

3. In lieu of these standards, the approval authority may allow use of an alternate detailed 

plan and specifications for landscaping, screening, plantings, fences, walls, structures and 

other features designed to camouflage, screen and buffer towers and accessory uses. The plan 

shall accomplish the same degree of screening achieved in subsections (H)(1) and (2) of this 

section, except as lesser requirements are desirable for adequate visibility for security 

purposes. 

4. Grounds maintenance, including landscaping, shall be provided and maintained for the 

duration of the use, to encourage health of plant material and to protect public health and 

safety. The maintenance shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and/or the lessee of 

the property, and/or the owner of the tower. 

Finding: The proposed tower preserves as much of the existing landscaping as possible, and includes a 

chain link fence for privacy screening. The site has industrial buildings buffering the view of the site on 

three sides. The applicant shall add evergreen shrubs along the western edge of the fenced area to 

provide screening. The shrubs shall be at least 4 feet tall and spaced no more than 5 feet on center. 

 

158/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=281
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=281
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=4
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 20 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

C. Variance; Criteria That Apply - Newberg Development Code 15.215.040: 

A. That strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation would 

result in practical difficulty or unnecessary physical hardship inconsistent with the 

objectives of this code. 

Finding:  The required tower setback is 30% of the height of the tower from any existing structure on 

the site, abutting properties, and public rights-of-way. The tower is 70 feet tall, so the required setback is 

21 feet. The tower is setback 32 feet from the property to the east, and approximately 80 feet from the 

property to the west, so it meets the setback from abutting properties. It is setback over 200 feet from 

any public rights-of-way, so it meets the setback from public rights-of-way. It is setback over 22 feet 

from the southern building on the site, and 9’ 5” from the northern building; the only setback it does not 

meet is from the building north of it on the site. The setback does result in a practical difficulty for the 

applicant, as there does not appear to be another location on the property where a cellular tower could be 

installed. The question is to determine what the objective or purpose of the setback standard is. 

The Development Code section on cellular towers states that the purpose of the code section is: 

15.445.180 Description and purpose. 

The purpose of this article is to: 

A. Allow new transmission towers, but only when necessary to meet functional requirements of 

the broadcast industry. 

B. Minimize visual impacts of towers through careful design, siting and vegetative screening. 

C. Avoid potential damage to adjacent properties from tower failure and falling ice, through 

engineering and careful siting of tower structures. 

D. Lessen impacts on surrounding residential areas. 

E. Maximize use of any new transmission tower so as to minimize the need to construct new 

towers. [Ord. 2536, 11-6-00. Code 2001 § 151.670.] 

 

Based on this purpose section, the objective of the setback standard was to avoid potential damage to 

adjacent properties from tower failure and falling ice. The tower meets the setback standard from 

adjacent properties, the public rights-of-way, and the building to the south. The only building that is 

potentially more at risk of damage from tower failure or falling ice is the building to the north, which is 

owned by Total Concept Development, who signed the application for the cell tower and consented to 

the tower location. The proposed setback variance does not increase the potential damage to adjacent 

properties, so the setback requirement from the northern building does create a practical difficulty that is 

inconsistent with the objective of the Development Code. 

 

B. That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the 

property involved or to the intended use of the property which do not apply generally to other 

properties classified in the same zoning district. 

Finding:  The property is long and narrow, which limits the potential locations for a cellular tower on 

the site. The M-2 (Light Industrial) zone allows intensive development of the site, and cellular towers 

are an allowed use in the zone. The intensive development of the long narrow site created an exceptional 

condition which does not generally apply to other M-2 properties. 

159/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 21 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

C. That strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation would 

deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by the owners of other properties classified in the 

same zoning district. 

Finding:  The Development Code does not encourage the construction of new cellular towers, but it 

acknowledges they are necessary when co-location will not be effective, and makes them an allowed use 

in the M-2 zone. A literal interpretation of the setback standard would deprive the applicant of the ability 

to install a cellular tower on this site, and deprive the applicant of a privilege enjoyed by the owners of 

other M-2 properties. 

D. That the granting of the variance will not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent 

with the limitations on other properties classified in the same zoning district. 

Finding:  Granting the variance would give the property owner the same development rights for cellular 

towers as other M-2 property owners, so it would not be a special privilege. 

E. That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or 

welfare or materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-

96. Code 2001 § 151.163.] 

Finding:  The proposed tower will meet the setbacks from the public rights-of-way and from adjacent 

properties, so granting the variance would not be detrimental to public health or safety, or materially 

injurious, to properties or improvements in the vicinity. The only building that may have a potential 

increased risk due to tower failure or ice is the building to the north, which is owned by Total Concept 

Development; this is the same property owner that has signed a lease for the cell tower and signed the 

design review/variance application. The only building that they have potentially put at greater risk is 

their own, so granting the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or 

materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. 

 

CONCLUSION:  Based on the above mentioned findings, the project meets the criteria required within 

the Newberg Development Code, subject to completion of the attached conditions. 

160/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 22 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

Exhibit B to Planning Commission Order 2015-19 

Conditions - File DR2-15-003/VAR-15-001 

Verizon Cellular Tower 

A. THE FOLLOWING MUST BE COMPLETED BEFORE THE CITY WILL ISSUE A 

BUILDING PERMIT: 

1. Permit Submittal:  Submit a building permit application and two (2) complete working 

drawing sets of the proposed project. Show all the features of the plan approved through 

design review, including the following: 

a. Grading plan 

b. Mechanical details 

c. Structural details 

 

2. Conditions of Approval:  Either write or otherwise permanently affix the conditions of 

approval contained within this report onto the first page of the plans submitted for 

building permit review. 

3. Landscaping plan: Provide a revised landscaping plan showing evergreen shrubs along 

the western edge of the fenced area to provide screening. The shrubs shall be at least 4 

feet tall and spaced no more than 5 feet on center. 

4. FCC approval: Provide written confirmation from the appropriate responsible official 

that a Federal Communications Commission (FCC) antenna structure registration 

application (FCC 854 Form) has been approved, or a statement that an application is not 

required.  

5. ODA approval: The conditions in the ODA July 9, 2015 letter shall be made conditions 

of approval for this project (see below): 

 
 

161/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 23 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

6. FAA approval: The conditions in the FAA “Determination of No Hazard to Air 

Navigation” letter shall be made conditions of approval for this project (see below): 

 

 

7. Letter of intent:  

a. Before a permit is issued: Record the letter of intent required in 

NMC 15.445.200(D) in miscellaneous deed records of the office of the county 

recorder; 

162/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.200


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 24 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

b. After a building permit is issued: 

b. Respond in a timely, comprehensive manner to a request for information from a 

potential shared use applicant required under subsection (A) of this section; 

c. Negotiate in good faith for shared use by third parties; and 

d. Allow shared use where the third party seeking such use agrees in writing to 

pay reasonable pro rata charges for sharing, including all charges necessary to 

modify the tower and transmitters to accommodate shared use, but not total tower 

reconstruction, and to observe whatever technical requirements are necessary to 

allow shared use without creating interference. 

e. Grounds for Suspension or Revocation. 

i. Willful, knowing failure of an owner whose tower was approved after 

November 6, 2000, to comply with the requirement of subsections (D)(5)(a) 

through (d) of this section shall be grounds for suspension or revocation of 

the use. Following report of such failure, the director shall schedule 

a hearing to determine whether the use should be suspended or revoked. 

The hearing shall be processed as a Type III public hearing before 

the planning commission. 

ii. Such conditions shall run with the land and be binding on subsequent 

purchasers of the tower site. 

 

8. Construction Plans must be submitted for all infrastructure per the requirements 

below. 

General Requirements: 
a. All survey monuments on the subject site or that may be subject to 

disturbance within the construction area, or the construction of any off-site 

improvements shall be adequately referenced and protected prior to 

commencement of any construction activity.  If the survey monuments are 

disturbed, moved, relocated or destroyed as a result of any construction, the 

project shall, at its cost, retain the services of a registered professional land 

surveyor in the State of Oregon to restore the monument to its original 

condition and file the necessary surveys as required by Oregon State law.  A 

copy of any recorded survey shall be submitted to Staff. 

b. The applicant shall obtain written approval from the appropriate source to 

construct any utilities or improvements within easement areas. 

The plans must note the following: 

Utilities: 

1. Storm Sewer Requirements: 

a. The system shall be reviewed and approved by the City of Newberg Public 

163/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=229


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 25 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

Works Department prior to issuance of Building Permits for the development. 

b. Stormwater Report:  If net new impervious area is less than 500 sqft, submit a 

memo summarizing the impervious area surface calculations, including a 

description of pervious materials proposed to be installed.  If net new 

impervious area is more than 500sqft, submit a final engineer's storm water 

report per the City of Newberg Engineering Design Standards.  All onsite 

storm drain and detention/water quality facilities to be private and maintained 

by private property owner with storm water maintenance agreement.   

c. Stormwater SDC’s – In accordance with Newberg Municipal Code, this 

design review does increase the impacts to the public improvement facility 

and is therefore not exempt from stormwater SDC charges. 

2. Streets: 

a. Developer shall be responsible for the repair and replacement of any off-

site city infrastructure, including streets, which are damaged by 

construction activities. 

 

9. Grading: Obtain an erosion control permit and install, operate and maintain adequate 

erosion control measures in conformance with the standards adopted by the City of 

Newberg during the construction of any public/private utility and building improvements 

until such time as approved permanent vegetative materials have been installed.   

B. THE FOLLOWING MUST BE ACCOMPLISHED PRIOR TO OCCUPANCY 

1. All conditions noted above must be completed prior to occupancy. 

2. Fire Department Requirements:  This project is subject to compliance with all Fire 

Department standards relating to access and fire protection.  

3. Design Review Conditions:  Contact the Planning Division (503-537-1240) to verify 

that all design review conditions have been completed. 

4. Site Inspection:  Contact the Building Division (503-537-1240) for Building, 

Mechanical, and Plumbing final inspections.  Contact the Fire Department (503-537-

1260) for Fire Safety final inspections.  Contact Yamhill County (503-538-7302) for 

electrical final inspections.  Contact the Planning Division (503-537-1240) for 

landscaping final inspections.  

C. DEVELOPMENT NOTES 

1. Systems development charges (SDCs) will be collected when building permits are issued. 

For questions regarding SDCs please refer to the city fee packet and contact the 

Engineering Division. 

164/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 26 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

Attachment 1:  Aerial Photo 

 

 

165/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 27 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Appeal\Appeal staff report - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower.doc 

Attachment 2:  Site Plan 

 

 

166/332 



ATTACHMENT 3

167/332 



ATTACHMENT 3

168/332 



ATTACHMENT 3

169/332 



ATTACHMENT 3

170/332 



ATTACHMENT 3

171/332 



ATTACHMENT 3

172/332 



ATTACHMENT 3

173/332 



ATTACHMENT 4

174/332 



Community Development Department 
P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 
  
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 1 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 
 

 

DECISION AND FINDINGS 
VERIZON CELLULAR TOWER DESIGN REVIEW/VARIANCE 

 
FILE NO:  DR2-15-003/VAR-15-001 

REQUEST: Design review approval for a new cellular tower/variance approval to reduce a 
setback  

LOCATION: 2401 E. Hancock Street 

TAX LOT: 3220AB-202 

APPLICANT: Proland LLC (representing Verizon Wireless) 

ZONE:  M-2 (Light Industrial) 

OVERLAYS: Airport Overlay 

CONTENTS 

Section I:  Application Information 
Section II:  Findings 
Section III:  Conditions 
Attachments: 
1. Aerial Photo 
2. Site Plan 
3. Public Comments/ 

Correspondence Received  
4. Application (by reference) 

 

ATTACHMENT 4

175/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 2 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

 

Section I:  Application Information 

Proposal:  

The applicant has requested design review approval for a new 70 foot tall cellular communications 
tower, with related ground equipment. The code requires a 21 foot setback from existing buildings on 
the site; the cell tower will meet this on the south side but will only be setback 11.5 feet from a 
building on the north side of the tower, so they have requested a variance to the setback standard. 

Process:  
 

The Design Review/Variance request is a Type II application and follows the procedures in Newberg 

Development Code 15.100.030.  Following a 14 day public comment period, the Community 

Development Director makes a decision on the application based on the criteria listed in the attached 

findings.  The Director’s decision is final unless appealed.  Important dates related to this application 

are as follows: 

 

Noticing: 

1. 5/27/15: The Community Development Director deemed the application complete. 

2. 5/22/15: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 500 feet of the site. 

3. 5/25/15: The applicant posted notice on the site. 

4. 7/2/15: The Community Development Director issued a decision on the application. 

 
Site Information: 
 

The site is approximately 1.4 acres and contains three existing industrial buildings with a mix of  

businesses. The site is relatively flat, with a slight slope to the south. The site was developed in 2008, 

and meets current Development Code standards for parking, landscaping and setbacks.  

 

Surrounding uses:  

 North/northwest - commercial development (dentist, retail, office), C-2 zone.  

 East – commercial development (mini-storage) on northern section, undeveloped land 

(potential new mini-storage) on southern section, C-2 zone. 

 West – undeveloped commercial land, C-2 zone. 

 South – commercial development (Wilco farm store), C-2 zone. 

 

Existing conditions: The site has vehicle access from Hancock Street, which is classified as a local road.  

An 18” stormwater conveyance pipe is located in Hancock Street and can accommodate the additional 

runoff created by this development.  No new water or wastewater services are proposed.   

ATTACHMENT 4

176/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 3 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

 

Agency Comments: 

The application was routed to several public agencies for review and comment.  Comments and 
recommendations from city departments have been incorporated into the findings and conditions.  
The agency comments are summarized below; the full text is included in Attachment 3.   

Federal Aviation Administration (FAA): The FAA completed a “Determination of No Hazard to 
Air Navigation” letter, with conditions regarding notification (when construction is completed, 
or if project abandoned) and future changes. 

Sportsman Airpark commented that the FAA “Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation” 
conditions need to part of the approval conditions. 

Oregon Dept. of Aviation (ODA): The ODA commented that, based on their preliminary review, 
the proposed cell tower would cause a disruption to the operations of the Sportsman Airpark, 
specifically the approach/departure procedures from runway 17-35. In addition, due to its 
location and height, the applicant would be required to file a FAA form 7460-1 with the ODA as 
required in OAR 738-70. ODA recommended that the cell tower be relocated or lowered away 
from the approach/departure to ensure safety to air navigation. 

  

Public Comments:  

As of the writing of this report, the city has received three written public comments. They are 
summarized below, and the full comments are included in Attachment 3.   

One comment was concerned about possible long-term health risks to other people in the 
vicinity (including a day care facility) from close proximity to a cell phone tower, and urged that 
the city not grant a variance to the setback standard.  

Another comment was also opposed to approving the variance and design review due to close 
proximity to a high density residential area and day care facility, and concerns that they could 
be adversely affected by radiation from the tower. They were also concerned about the 
proximity of the airport, and commented that the 21-foot setback was established to protect 
the privacy, value and efficacy of surrounding businesses. 

The third comment was concerned about two potential public safety issues: that the height of 
the tower could pose a hazard to the airport, and that radiation from the tower could be a 
health hazard to people near the tower. They thought that the applicant should be required to 
provide documentation that the tower would not create hazards for the airport or radiation 
hazards for nearby people. They were also concerned about the size of the variance request, 
and thought that such a large reduction in the standard (nearly 50%) could create a negative 
precedent that would be cited by other applicants in the future, to the detriment of the 
community as a whole. 

ATTACHMENT 4

177/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 4 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

 

Issues and Analysis summary: 

1. Radiation from cell towers: The Newberg Development Code does not directly regulate radiation 
and emissions from cellular communication towers. These issues are regulated by the Federal 
Communication Commission (FCC). The Development Code requires that the following statement be a 
condition of approval: 

15.445.210 Conditions of approval. 

The following conditions of approval must be met prior to issuance of a building permit for 

any telecommunications facility: 

A. Agency Statements. The applicant shall provide the following information in writing from 

the appropriate responsible official: 

1. Confirmation that a Federal Communications Commission (FCC) antenna structure 

registration application (FCC 854 Form) has been approved, or a statement that an 

application is not required. 

The applicant will be required to show that they have received FCC approval for their application. 

2. Proximity to the airport: The applicant is required to show that they have approval from the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) and the Oregon Department of Aviation (ODA) before a building permit 
will be approved for the cellular tower. The FAA has issued a “Determination of No Hazard to Air 
Navigation” letter with some conditions, which would become conditions of approval for the project. 
The ODA has issued a letter saying that, based on their preliminary review, the tower would create a 
problem for airport operations and required additional review by the ODA. The project will be 
conditioned to provide: 

3. A statement from the Oregon State Department of Aviation (OSDA) that the application 
has been found to comply with the applicable regulations of the Department, or a statement 
that no such compliance is required. 

3. Variance request: There was a concern expressed that the variance approval could create a 
precedent for other future variances. A variance application is unique to a specific project on a specific 
site, however, so each variance is unique and does not set a precedent for other decisions.  

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 4

178/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=77
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 5 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

Section II:  Findings –File DR2-15-003/VAR-15-001 
Verizon Cellular Tower 

A. Design Review; Criteria That Apply - Newberg Development Code  15.220.050(B): 

1. Design compatibility. The proposed design review request incorporates an 
architectural design which is compatible with and/or superior to existing or proposed 
uses and structures in the surrounding area.  This shall include, but not be limited to, 
building architecture, materials, colors, roof design, landscape design, and signage. 

Finding: There are specific design standards for cell towers that will be addressed below. The tower 
will be painted in accordance with the FAA and ODA regulations.  

2. Parking and On-Site Circulation. Parking areas shall meet the requirements of NMC 
15.440.010. Parking studies may be required to determine if adequate parking and 
circulation are provided for uses not specifically identified in NMC 15.440.010. 
Provisions shall be made to provide efficient and adequate on-site circulation without 
using the public streets as part of the parking lot circulation pattern. Parking areas 
shall be designed so that vehicles can efficiently enter and exit the public streets with a 
minimum impact on the functioning of the public street. 

Finding: The site has existing industrial buildings with adequate parking. The cell tower application 
does not remove any existing parking spaces.    

3. Setbacks and General Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 
15.415.010 through 15.415.060 dealing with height restrictions and public access; and 
NMC 15.405.010 through 15.405.040 and NMC 15.410.010 through 15.410.070 dealing 
with setbacks, coverage, vision clearance, and yard requirements. 

Finding: The cell tower criteria have specific setback standards, which will be addressed below. The M-
2 zone does not have a set height limit; the actual height limit is set by the Airport Overlay zone, which 
is addressed in a finding below.  The cell tower proposal does not create a vision clearance issue on the 
site, and does meet the standard M-2 setbacks. 

4. Landscaping Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 15.420.010 dealing 
with landscape requirements and landscape screening. 

Finding: The existing site has 16.13% landscaping, which exceeds the 15% landscaping minimum. The 
cell tower proposal will remove 551 square feet of landscaping, so the post-development site would 
have 15.27% landscaping and still meets the minimum landscaping standard. Following compliance 
with design review conditions, the landscape plan and parking lot complies with NMC 15.420.010.  All 
areas subject to the final design review plan and not otherwise improved are landscaped.   

5. Signs. Signs shall comply with NMC 15.435.010 et seq. dealing with signs. 

Finding: No signs are included in this review. If the FCC and FAA require any signage then the applicant 
will install the required signs. 

ATTACHMENT 4

179/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 6 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

6. Manufactured Home, Mobile Home and RV Parks. Manufactured home, mobile 
home, and recreational vehicle parks shall also comply with the standards listed in 
NMC 15.445.050 et seq. in addition to the other criteria listed in this section. 

Finding: Not applicable. The development proposal is not a manufactured home, mobile home, or RV 
park. 

7. Zoning District Compliance. The proposed use shall be listed as a permitted or 
conditionally permitted use in the zoning district in which it is located as found in NMC 
15.304.010 through 15.328.040. Through this site review process, the director may 
make a determination that a use is determined to be similar to those listed in the 
applicable zoning district, if it is not already specifically listed. In this case, the director 
shall make a finding that the use shall not have any different or more detrimental 
effects upon the adjoining neighborhood area than those specifically listed. 

Finding: The site is zoned M-2 (Light Industrial). A cellular communication tower is an allowed use in 
the M-2 zone. It is more than 2,000 feet from the nearest cell tower, so it does not require a 
conditional use permit.  

8. Subdistrict Compliance. Properties located within subdistricts shall comply with the 
provisions of those subdistricts located in NMC 15.340.010 through 15.348.060. 

Finding: The proposed tower location is within the Airport Overlay subdistrict, Transitional Surface. 
This subdistrict limits the height of the proposed structure to approximately 80-90 feet, as interpreted 
by city staff. The proposed tower is 70 feet tall, so it appears to meet the height limits. The 
Development Code also requires notice to the FAA to verify that the structure is below the height 
limits. The applicant supplied notice to the FAA, and received a “Determination of No Hazard to Air 
Navigation” letter, which included conditions such as notifying the FAA when construction was 
complete or the design changed. The Development Code has more specific requirements for FAA and 
ODA notification when a cellular tower is proposed, so the specific FAA and ODA conditions will be 
addressed below in the cellular tower criteria. 
 
 

9. Alternative Circulation, Roadway Frontage Improvements and Utility 
Improvements. Where applicable, new developments shall provide for access for 
vehicles and pedestrians to adjacent properties which are currently developed or will 
be developed in the future. This may be accomplished through the provision of local 
public streets or private access and utility easements. At the time of development of a 
parcel, provisions shall be made to develop the adjacent street frontage in accordance 
with city street standards and the standards contained in the transportation plan. At 
the discretion of the city, these improvements may be deferred through use of a 
deferred improvement agreement or other form of security. 

Finding: The project meets the applicable development code and municipal code requirements as 
detailed below and as conditioned.  No transportation improvements are proposed.  Access to the site 
is provided from Hancock Street, and is adequate.  No water or wastewater connections or 
improvements are proposed.   

ATTACHMENT 4

180/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 7 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

 

Stormwater:  NMC 13.25.040 No person shall undertake a ground disturbing project without 
having provided erosion and sediment controls that address erosion caused by wind or rain.  
13.25.260 & 13.25.270 Projects that create a new impervious areas of 500 square feet or more 
shall use techniques or create stormwater facilities that maintain the water quality and 
beneficial uses of the receiving watercourse.  13.25.280 Prior to an applicant receiving a 
permit for a project, the director shall determine the stormwater requirements of the project.  
They shall provide a summary of the project, design flow calculations, and proposed methods 
for treating stormwater to the director for review and approval in accordance with 
requirements specified in the design standards manual. 

Findings: The developer has not proposed any new stormwater connections or facilities.  It is assumed 
that the new impervious area surface water will surface flow to existing stormwater infrastructure on 
the site.  It appears that this development will add more than 500 sq. ft. of net new impervious area.   

Approval of this project is conditioned on the applicant meeting the city’s stormwater code (ordinance 
No. 2021-2754) and the engineering standards manual.  A possible way to meet this ordinance is to 
reduce the net new impervious area to be less than 500 sq. ft.  Open graded, pervious rock surfaces are 
considered to be pervious.  Alternatively, stormwater facilities may be installed per the engineering 
standards manual.  If net new impervious area is less than 500 sq. ft., submit a memo summarizing the 
impervious area surface area calculations, including a description of pervious materials proposed to be 
installed.  If net new impervious area is more than 500 sq. ft., submit a final engineer's storm water 
report per the City of Newberg Engineering Design Standards Manual.  All onsite storm drain and 
detention/water quality facilities to be private and maintained by private property owner with storm 
water maintenance agreement.   

 

10. Traffic Study Improvements. If a traffic study is required, improvements identified 
in the traffic study shall be implemented as required by the director. 

Finding:  A traffic study was not required for this project, as it is only expected to generate a few trips 
to the site. 

 

B. Cellular tower; Criteria That Apply - Newberg Development Code  15.220.050(B): 

15.445.190 Approval criteria. 

New transmission towers or replacement of existing towers may be allowed, based on 

findings by the approval authority that the following criteria are met: 

A. A good faith effort has been made to demonstrate that an existing tower cannot 

accommodate the proposed antennas and/or transmitter. 

ATTACHMENT 4

181/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 8 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

Finding: The applicant did contact the owners of the existing towers in the area about colocation, as 

required. The applicant also included a RF study letter, which noted that the existing tower sites in 

Newberg were too far away from east Newberg to improve service in that area. Improving service 

coverage is an important consideration, as the public increasingly relies on cellular phones instead of 

land-line phones for general communication and for emergency (911) calls. The applicant has made a 

good faith effort to demonstrate that existing towers cannot accommodate the proposed project. 

B. The tower and associate structures meet the setback, landscaping, parking and vegetation 

requirements of NMC 15.445.220. 

Finding: The proposed tower has landscaping around the ground equipment area. Some shrubs need 

to be added along the western edge of the fenced area to buffer the view of the equipment. They are 

to be evergreen, at least 4 feet tall, and spaced no more than 5 feet on center. As conditioned, the 

proposal meets the landscaping and parking requirements. The tower meet the 21 foot setback 

requirement on all sides except the north, where it is 9’5” from the existing building. The applicant has 

requested a variance to the setback from this northern building; if the variance is approved then the 

application will meet this criterion. 

C. The proposed tower has been structurally designed to accommodate the maximum number 

of additional users technically practicable. 

Finding: The drawings demonstrate that the tower has been designed to accommodate additional 

antennas.  

D. The tower has minimal visual impact on the environment. 

Finding: The proposed tower is on an industrial site, and matches the character of the surroundings. At 

70 feet tall, it is relatively short for a cellular tower which will reduce its impact on the environment. It 

will be painted and/or lit as required by the FAA and ODA to provide proper visibility for air navigation. 

E. The tower meets the design review provisions of NMC 15.220.030. 

Finding: As noted in the design review findings above, the proposal meets the design review provisions 

of the NMC 15.220.030. 

F. The tower does not intrude into the airport imaginary surface areas as defined in 

NMC 15.05.030. [Ord. 2536, 11-6-00. Code 2001 § 151.671.] 

Conditions of approval: 

2. Confirmation that the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has been notified and 

that the facility has not been found to be a hazard to air navigation under FAA 

regulations, or a statement that compliance is not required. 

3. A statement from the Oregon State Department of Aviation (OSDA) that the 

application has been found to comply with the applicable regulations of the 

Department, or a statement that no such compliance is required. 

ATTACHMENT 4

182/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.220
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15220.html#15.220.030
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=13
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg1505.html#15.05.030
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2536.pdf


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 9 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

 

Finding: The applicant notified the FAA about the proposed project and received a “Determination of 

No Hazard to Air Navigation” letter, which included conditions regarding notification to the FAA when 

the project is completed, or abandoned, or changed. The FAA conditions in the “Determination of No 

Hazard to Air Navigation” letter shall be made conditions of approval for this project. 
 
The Oregon Dept. of Aviation (ODA) was notified of the application and commented that, based on 
their preliminary review, the proposed cell tower would cause a disruption to the operations of the 
Sportsman Airpark, specifically the approach/departure procedures from runway 17-35. In addition, 
due to its location and height, the applicant would be required to file a FAA form 7460-1 with the ODA 
as required in OAR 738-70. ODA recommended that the cell tower be relocated or lowered away from 
the approach/departure to ensure safety to air navigation. The applicant will be conditioned that 
before a building permit can be approved for the proposed tower they shall file a FAA form 7460-1 
with the ODA, and to obtain a statement from the ODA that the application has been found to comply 
with the applicable regulations of the department, or a statement that no such compliance is required. 
 

15.445.200 Application requirements. 

An application for approval of a Type II or Type III decision for a radio or television 

transmission tower shall contain at least the following information before it is complete: 

A. Site Plan. Site plan or plans to scale specifying the location of tower(s), guy anchors (if 

any), transmission building and/or other accessory uses, access, parking, fences, landscaped 

areas, and adjacent land uses. Such plan shall also demonstrate compliance with 

NMC 15.445.220(B) and (C). 

B. Landscape Plan. Landscape plan to scale indicating size, spacing and type of plantings 

required in NMC 15.445.220(H). 

C. Engineer’s Report. Report from a professional engineer licensed in the State of Oregon, 

documenting the following: 

1. Tower height and design, including technical, engineering, economic, and other 

pertinent factors governing selection of the proposed design. A cross-section of the 

tower structure shall be included. 

2. Total anticipated capacity of the structure, including number and types 

of antennas which can be accommodated. 

3. Evidence of structural integrity of the tower structure as required by the building 

official. 

4. Failure characteristics of the tower and demonstration that the site and setbacks are 

of adequate size to contain debris. 

ATTACHMENT 4

183/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=238
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=4
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.220
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.220
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=57
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=57


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 10 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

5. Ice hazards and mitigation measures which have been employed, including increased 

setbacks and/or de-icing equipment. 

6. Specific design and reconstruction plans indicating the means by which the 

shared use provisions of this section will be met. This submission is required only in the 

event that the applicant intends to meet the shared use requirements of this section by 

subsequent reinforcement and reconstruction of the tower. 

7. The requirement of subsection (C)(6) of this section may be deferred if: 

a. At the time the building permit for the tower is issued, there are no applications 

before the FCC that could use the tower; or 

b. The applications which are before the FCC have contractual arrangements for 

the use of other towers. 

D. Letter of Intent. 

1. The applicant shall provide a letter of intent to lease excess space on the 

tower structure and to lease additional applicant-controlled excess land on the tower 

site when the shared-use potential of the tower is absorbed, if structurally and 

technically possible. A reasonable pro rata charge may be made for shared use, 

consistent with an appropriate sharing of construction, financing and maintenance 

costs. Fees may also be charged for any structural or RF changes necessitated by such 

shared use. Such sharing shall be a condition of approval if approval is granted. 

2. The applicant shall base charges on generally accepted accounting principles and 

shall explain the elements included in the charge, including, but not limited to, a pro 

rata share of actual site selection and processing costs, land costs, site design, 

construction and maintenance costs, finance costs, return on equity, and depreciation. 

E. Tower Capacity. The applicant shall quantify the additional tower capacity anticipated, 

including the approximate number and types of antennas. The applicant shall also describe 

any limitations on the ability of the tower to accommodate other uses, e.g., radio frequency 

interference, mass height, frequency or other characteristics. The applicant shall describe the 

technical options available to overcome those limitations and reasons why the technical 

options considered were not chosen to be incorporated. The approval authority shall approve 

those limitations if they cannot be overcome by reasonable technical means. 

F. Evidence of Lack of Space. Evidence of the lack of space on all suitable existing towers to 

locate the proposed antenna and of the lack of space on existing tower sites to construct a 

tower for the proposed antenna. 

G. Written Authorization. Written authorization from adjoining property owners if needed, 

under NMC 15.445.220(C). 

ATTACHMENT 4

184/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=173
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=173
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=239
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=238
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.220


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 11 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

H. Written Evidence. Written evidence from the Federal Communications Commission related 

to a request for approval of a reduction in the capacity of the proposed tower under 

NMC 15.445.220(D), if needed. [Ord. 2536, 11-6-00. Code 2001 § 151.672.] 

Finding: The application include site plans, a landscaping plan, an engineer’s report, a letter of intent to 

lease space, information about the tower capacity, and a good faith effort about lack of space. Written 

authorization from adjoining property owners was not required, as the tower does not have guy wires. 

The applicant did not request FCC approval for a reduction in the capacity of the tower. 

15.445.210 Conditions of approval. 

The following conditions of approval must be met prior to issuance of a building permit for 

any telecommunications facility: 

A. Agency Statements. The applicant shall provide the following information in writing from 

the appropriate responsible official: 

1. Confirmation that a Federal Communications Commission (FCC) antenna structure 

registration application (FCC 854 Form) has been approved, or a statement that an 

application is not required. 

2. Confirmation that the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has been notified and 

that the facility has not been found to be a hazard to air navigation under FAA 

regulations, or a statement that compliance is not required. 

3. A statement from the Oregon State Department of Aviation (OSDA) that the 

application has been found to comply with the applicable regulations of the 

Department, or a statement that no such compliance is required. 

4. The director may waive the statements in subsections (A)(1) through (3) of this 

section when the applicant demonstrates that a good faith, timely effort was made to 

obtain such responses but that no such response was forthcoming, provided 

the applicant conveys any response received; and further, provided any subsequent 

response that is received is conveyed to the approval authority as soon as possible. 

Findings: These conditions will be made conditions of approval. 

15.445.220 Installation standards. 

A. Shared Use of Existing Towers. The applicant shall make a good faith effort to substantially 

demonstrate that no existing tower can accommodate the applicant’s proposed 

antenna/transmitter as described below. 

1. The applicant shall contact the owners of all existing towers, of a height roughly 

equal to or greater than the height of the tower proposed by the applicant. A list shall 

be provided of all owners contacted, the date of such contact, and the form and content 

of such contact. 

ATTACHMENT 4

185/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=77
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.220
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2536.pdf
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=77
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 12 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

2. Such contact shall be made in a timely manner; that is, sufficiently before the filing of 

an application for a hearing to include a response into the application when filed. 

a. Where an existing tower is known to have capacity for additional antennas of 

the sort proposed, the application for a new tower shall not be deemed complete 

until the owner of the existing tower responds. Failure of a listed owner to respond 

shall not be relevant to the approval authority if a timely, good faith effort was 

made to obtain a response and a response was not received within 30 days of the 

request. 

b. The director shall maintain and provide, on request, records of responses from 

each owner. 

c. Once an owner demonstrates an antenna of the sort proposed by 

the applicant cannot be accommodated on the owner’s tower as described below, 

the owner need not be contacted by future applicants for antennas of the sort 

proposed. 

3. The applicant shall provide the following information from each owner contacted: 

a. Identification of the site by location, tax lot number, existing uses, and tower 

height. 

b. Whether each such tower could structurally accommodate the antenna proposed 

by the applicant without requiring structural changes be made to the tower. To 

enable the owner to respond, the applicant shall provide each such owner with the 

height, length, weight, and other relevant data about the proposed antenna. 

c. Whether each such tower could structurally accommodate the 

proposed antenna if structural changes were made, not including totally rebuilding 

the tower. If so, the owner shall specify in general terms what structural changes 

would be required. 

d. If structurally able, would shared use by such existing tower be precluded for 

reasons related to RF interference. If so, the owner shall describe in general terms 

what changes in either the existing or proposed antenna would be required to 

accommodate the proposed tower, if at all. 

e. If shared use is possible based on subsections (A)(3)(a) through (d) of this section, 

the fee an owner of an existing tower would charge for such shared use. 

4. Shared use is not precluded simply because a reasonable fee for shared use is 

charged, or because of reasonable costs necessary to adapt the existing and 

proposed uses to a shared tower. The approval authority may consider expert testimony 

ATTACHMENT 4

186/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=239
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 13 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

to determine whether the fee and costs are reasonable. Costs exceeding new tower 

development are presumed unreasonable. 

Finding: As noted above, the applicant contacted the owners of existing towers, and made a good faith 

effort to demonstrate that no existing tower can accommodate the proposed project. 

B. Tower Setbacks. 

1. Only one tower per lot is authorized. Towers shall be set back from any 

existing structure on the site, abutting properties, and public rights-of-way a minimum 

distance equal to 30 percent of the height of the tower, measured from the base of the 

tower to the structure, abutting property or public right-of-way. All towers shall be set 

back from a residential zone a distance equal to or greater than 100 percent of the 

tower height, measured from the base of the tower to the nearest property line of a 

residentially zoned lot. The setback requirements of this section shall not apply towards: 

a. Antennas incorporated into, and no more than 18 feet above, existing or 

new buildings; 

b. Antennas incorporated into, and no more than 18 feet above, existing structures; 

c. Antenna support structures incorporated into, and no more than 18 feet above, 

existing or new buildings. 

2. Towers must meet all setback, design and landscape requirements of the code. 

3. No new tower may be installed closer than 2,000 feet from any existing or proposed 

tower, unless approved through the Type III conditional use permit process. 

Finding: The tower is 70 feet tall, so the required setback from abutting properties, public rights-of-

way and adjacent structures is 21 feet. The tower setbacks exceed the required setback from abutting 

properties and public rights-of-way, and meets the setback from the southern adjacent building. It 

does not meet the setback from the northern building (has a 9’5” setback), so the applicant has 

requested a variance to the setback from this building. If the variance is approved then this criterion is 

met. There are no other towers within 2,000 feet of this proposed tower. 

C. Guy Setback. 

1. Guy anchors shall be set back a minimum of 25 feet from any property line, public 

property or street abutting the site. 

2. A guy anchor may be located on an adjoining property when: 

a. The owner of the adjoining property on which it is to be placed authorizes it in 

writing; and 

ATTACHMENT 4

187/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=25
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=81
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 14 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

b. The guy anchor meets the requirements of subsection (C)(2)(a) of this section as 

to all other setback requirements. 

c. Guy anchors may be located within required landscape areas. 

Finding: There are no guy wires on the tower. 

D. Required Sharing of New Towers. All new towers shall be designed to structurally 

accommodate the maximum number of additional users technically practicable, but in no 

case less than the following: 

1. For television antenna towers, at least three high-power television antennas and one 

microwave facility or two FM antennas, and at least one two-way radio antenna for 

every 10 feet of the tower over 200 feet. 

2. For any other towers, at least one two-way radio antenna for every 10 feet of the 

tower, or at least one two-way radio antenna for every 20 feet of the tower and at least 

one microwave facility. 

3. Such other combination as found by the approval authority to provide the maximum 

possible number of foreseeable users. 

a. Such requirements may be reduced if the Federal 

Communications Commission provides a written statement that no more licenses for 

those broadcast frequencies that could use the tower will be available in the foreseeable 

future. 

b. Such requirements may be reduced if the size of the tower required significantly 

exceeds the size of the existing towers in the area and would create an unusually 

onerous visual impact that would dominate and alter the visual character of the area 

when compared to the impact of other existing towers. This provision is only to be 

applied in unusual circumstances not resulting from the applicant’s action or site 

selection unless no other site is possible. 

4. Additional antennas and accessory uses to existing antennas may be added to an existing 

tower, under a Type I application, if the existing tower meets the setback and landscaping 

requirements of subsections (B), (C) and (G) of this section. Accessory uses shall include only 

such buildings and facilities necessary for transmission function and satellite ground stations 

associated with them, but shall not include broadcast studios, offices, vehicle storage areas, 

nor other similar uses not necessary for the transmission function. Accessory uses may include 

studio facilities for emergency broadcast purposes or for other special, limited purposes found 

by the approval authority not to create significant additional impacts nor to require 

construction of additional buildings or facilities exceeding 25 percent of the floor area of 

other permitted buildings. 

ATTACHMENT 4

188/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=238
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=238
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=238
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=77
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=21
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=4
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=4
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=4
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 15 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

Finding: The proposed tower is not a television antenna tower or a two-way radio antenna. It has been 

designed to allow additional cellular antennas. 

5. If a new tower is approved, the applicant shall: 

a. Record the letter of intent required in NMC 15.445.200(D) in miscellaneous deed 

records of the office of the county recorder; 

b. Respond in a timely, comprehensive manner to a request for information from a 

potential shared use applicant required under subsection (A) of this section; 

c. Negotiate in good faith for shared use by third parties; and 

d. Allow shared use where the third party seeking such use agrees in writing to pay 

reasonable pro rata charges for sharing, including all charges necessary to modify the 

tower and transmitters to accommodate shared use, but not total tower reconstruction, 

and to observe whatever technical requirements are necessary to allow 

shared use without creating interference. 

e. Grounds for Suspension or Revocation. 

i. Willful, knowing failure of an owner whose tower was approved after November 

6, 2000, to comply with the requirement of subsections (D)(5)(a) through (d) of this 

section shall be grounds for suspension or revocation of the use. Following report of 

such failure, the director shall schedule a hearing to determine whether 

the use should be suspended or revoked. The hearing shall be processed as a Type III 

public hearing before the planning commission. 

ii. Such conditions shall run with the land and be binding on subsequent purchasers 

of the tower site. 

Finding: These conditions will become conditions of approval. 

E. Visual Impact. The applicant shall demonstrate that the tower can be expected to have the least 

visual impact on the environment, taking into consideration technical, engineering, economic and 

other pertinent factors. Towers shall be painted and lighted as follows: 

1. Towers 200 feet or less in height shall be painted in accordance with regulations of the 

Federal Aviation Administration and/or Oregon State Department of Aviation. Where such 

regulations do not apply, towers shall be camouflaged. All new towers and antennas must 

either be camouflaged or employ appropriate stealth technologies that are visually 

compatible with a host building or structure, or the surrounding natural environment. The 

type of camouflage may include trees, flagpoles, bell towers, smoke stacks, steeples; 

however, other types of camouflage may be approved at the discretion of the decision 

making body. 

ATTACHMENT 4

189/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.200
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=229
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=59
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=59
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 16 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

2. Towers more than 200 feet in height shall be painted in accordance with regulations of the 

Federal Aviation Administration and the Oregon State Department of Aviation. 

3. Towers shall be illuminated as required by the Federal Aviation Administration and the 

Oregon State Department of Aviation. 

4. Towers shall be the minimum height necessary to provide parity with existing similar 

tower-supported antennas and shall be freestanding where the negative visual effect is less 

than would be created by use of a guyed tower. 

Finding: The proposed tower is less than 200 feet tall, and will be painted and/or lit as required by the 

FAA and ODA to ensure adequate visibility for air navigation. The tower is freestanding, not guyed. 

F. Parking. A minimum of two parking spaces shall be provided on each site; an additional parking 

space for each two employees shall be provided at facilities which require on-site personnel. 

The director may authorize the joint use of parking facilities subject to the requirements of 

NMC 15.440.050. 

Finding: The site has existing parking spaces for the industrial buildings. The parking for the cellular 

tower will only be used occasionally by maintenance personnel, so it is reasonable for the cellular 

tower to share the existing parking on the site. There are no on-site personnel for the cellular tower. 

G. Vegetation. Existing landscaping on the site shall be preserved to the greatest practical extent. 

The applicant shall provide a site plan showing existing significant vegetation to be removed, and 

vegetation to be replanted to replace that lost. 

H. Landscaping. Landscape material shall include the following: 

1. For towers 200 feet tall or less, a 20-foot-wide landscape buffer is required immediately 

adjacent to the structure containing the telecommunications facility. At least one row of 

evergreen trees or shrubs, not less than four feet high at the time of planting, and spaced not 

more than 15 feet apart, shall be provided within the landscape buffer. Shrubs should be of a 

variety which can be expected to grow to form a continuous hedge at least five feet in height 

within two years of planting. Trees and shrubs in the vicinity of guy wires shall be of a kind 

that would not exceed 20 feet in height or would not affect the stability of the guys, should 

they be uprooted, and shall not obscure visibility of the anchor from the 

transmission building or security facilities and staff. 

2. For towers more than 200 feet tall, a 40-foot-wide landscape buffer shall be provided 

immediately adjacent to the structure containing the telecommunications facility. Provide at 

least one row of evergreen shrubs spaced not more than five feet apart which will grow to 

form a continuous hedge at least five feet in height within two years of planting; one row of 

deciduous trees, not less than one-and-one-half-inch caliper measured three feet from the 

ground at the time of planting, and spaced not more than 20 feet apart; and at least one row 

of evergreen trees, not less than four feet at the time of planting, and spaced not more than 

ATTACHMENT 4

190/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=24
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=146
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216.2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15440.html#15.440.050
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=281
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=281


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 17 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

15 feet apart. Trees and shrubs in the vicinity of guy wires shall be of a kind that would not 

exceed 20 feet in height or would not affect the stability of the guys, should they be uprooted, 

and shall not obscure visibility of the anchor from the transmission building or security 

facilities and staff. 

3. In lieu of these standards, the approval authority may allow use of an alternate detailed 

plan and specifications for landscaping, screening, plantings, fences, walls, structures and 

other features designed to camouflage, screen and buffer towers and accessory uses. The 

plan shall accomplish the same degree of screening achieved in subsections (H)(1) and (2) of 

this section, except as lesser requirements are desirable for adequate visibility for security 

purposes. 

4. Grounds maintenance, including landscaping, shall be provided and maintained for the 

duration of the use, to encourage health of plant material and to protect public health and 

safety. The maintenance shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and/or the lessee 

of the property, and/or the owner of the tower. 

Finding: The proposed tower preserves as much of the existing landscaping as possible, and includes a 

chain link fence for privacy screening. The site has industrial buildings buffering the view of the site on 

three sides. The applicant shall add evergreen shrubs along the western edge of the fenced area to 

provide screening. The shrubs shall be at least 4 feet tall and spaced no more than 5 feet on center. 

 

C. Variance; Criteria That Apply - Newberg Development Code 15.215.040: 

A. That strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation would 
result in practical difficulty or unnecessary physical hardship inconsistent with the 
objectives of this code. 

Finding:  The required tower setback is 30% of the height of the tower from any existing structure on 
the site, abutting properties, and public rights-of-way. The tower is 70 feet tall, so the required setback 
is 21 feet. The tower is setback 32 feet from the property to the east, and approximately 80 feet from 
the property to the west, so it meets the setback from abutting properties. It is setback over 200 feet 
from any public rights-of-way, so it meets the setback from public rights-of-way. It is setback over 22 
feet from the southern building on the site, and 9’ 5” from the building; the only setback it does not 
meet is from the building north of it on the site. The setback does result in a practical difficulty for the 
applicant, as there does not appear to be another location on the property where a cellular tower 
could be installed. The question is to determine what the objective or purpose of the setback standard 
is. 

The Development Code section on cellular towers states that the purpose of the code section is: 
15.445.180 Description and purpose. 
The purpose of this article is to: 
A. Allow new transmission towers, but only when necessary to meet functional requirements of 
the broadcast industry. 

ATTACHMENT 4

191/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=4
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 18 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

B. Minimize visual impacts of towers through careful design, siting and vegetative screening. 
C. Avoid potential damage to adjacent properties from tower failure and falling ice, through 
engineering and careful siting of tower structures. 
D. Lessen impacts on surrounding residential areas. 
E. Maximize use of any new transmission tower so as to minimize the need to construct new 
towers. [Ord. 2536, 11-6-00. Code 2001 § 151.670.] 

 
Based on this purpose section, the objective of the setback standard was to avoid potential damage to 
adjacent properties from tower failure and falling ice. The tower meets the setback standard from 
adjacent properties, the public rights-of-way, and the building to the south. The only building that is 
potentially more at risk of damage from tower failure or falling ice is the building to the north, which is 
owned by Total Concept Development, who signed the application for the cell tower and consented to 
the tower location. The proposed setback variance does not increase the potential damage to adjacent 
properties, so the setback requirement from the northern building does create a practical difficulty 
that is inconsistent with the objective of the Development Code. 
 

B. That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the 
property involved or to the intended use of the property which do not apply generally to other 
properties classified in the same zoning district. 

Finding:  The property is long and narrow, which limits the potential locations for a cellular tower on 
the site. The M-2 (Light Industrial) zone allows intensive development of the site, and cellular towers 
are an allowed use in the zone. The intensive development of the long narrow site created an 
exceptional condition which does not generally apply to other M-2 properties. 

C. That strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation would 
deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by the owners of other properties classified in the 
same zoning district. 

Finding:  The Development Code does not encourage the construction of new cellular towers, but it 
acknowledges they are necessary when co-location will not be effective, and makes them an allowed 
use in the M-2 zone. A literal interpretation of the setback standard would deprive the applicant of the 
ability to install a cellular tower on this site, and deprive the applicant of a privilege enjoyed by the 
owners of other M-2 properties. 

D. That the granting of the variance will not constitute a grant of special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitations on other properties classified in the same zoning district. 

Finding:  Granting the variance would give the property owner the same development rights for 
cellular towers as other M-2 property owners, so it would not be a special privilege. 

E. That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or 
welfare or materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-
96. Code 2001 § 151.163.] 

ATTACHMENT 4

192/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 19 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

Finding:  The proposed tower will meet the setbacks from the public rights-of-way and from adjacent 
properties, so granting the variance would not be detrimental to public health or safety, or materially 
injurious, to properties or improvements in the vicinity. The only building that may have a potential 
increased risk due to tower failure or ice is the building to the north, which is owned by Total Concept 
Development; this is the same property owner that has signed a lease for the cell tower and signed the 
design review/variance application. The only building that they have potentially put at greater risk is 
their own, so granting the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or 
materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. 

 

CONCLUSION:  Based on the above mentioned findings, the project meets the criteria required within 
the Newberg Development Code, subject to completion of the attached conditions. 

ATTACHMENT 4

193/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 20 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

Section III:  Conditions –File DR2-15-003/VAR-15-001 
Verizon Cellular Tower 

A. THE FOLLOWING MUST BE COMPLETED BEFORE THE CITY WILL ISSUE A BUILDING PERMIT: 

1. Permit Submittal:  Submit a building permit application and two (2) complete working 
drawing sets of the proposed project. Show all the features of the plan approved 
through design review, including the following: 

a. Grading plan 
b. Mechanical details 
c. Structural details 

 
2. Conditions of Approval:  Either write or otherwise permanently affix the conditions of 

approval contained within this report onto the first page of the plans submitted for 
building permit review. 

3. Landscaping plan: Provide a revised landscaping plan showing evergreen shrubs along 
the western edge of the fenced area to provide screening. The shrubs shall be at least 4 
feet tall and spaced no more than 5 feet on center. 

4. FCC approval: Provide written confirmation from the appropriate responsible official 
that a Federal Communications Commission (FCC) antenna structure registration 
application (FCC 854 Form) has been approved, or a statement that an application is not 
required.  

5. ODA approval: File a FAA form 7460-1 with the ODA, and provide a written statement 
from the Oregon Department of Aviation (ODA) that the application has been found to 
comply with the applicable regulations of the Department, or a statement that no such 
compliance is required. 

6. FAA approval: The conditions in the FAA “Determination of No Hazard to Air 

Navigation” letter shall be made conditions of approval for this project (see below): 
 

ATTACHMENT 4

194/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 21 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

 

7. Letter of intent:  

a. Before a permit is issued: Record the letter of intent required in 

NMC 15.445.200(D) in miscellaneous deed records of the office of the county 

recorder; 

b. After a building permit is issued: 

ATTACHMENT 4

195/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html#15.445.200


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 22 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

b. Respond in a timely, comprehensive manner to a request for information from 

a potential shared use applicant required under subsection (A) of this section; 

c. Negotiate in good faith for shared use by third parties; and 

d. Allow shared use where the third party seeking such use agrees in writing to 

pay reasonable pro rata charges for sharing, including all charges necessary to 

modify the tower and transmitters to accommodate shared use, but not total 

tower reconstruction, and to observe whatever technical requirements are 

necessary to allow shared use without creating interference. 

e. Grounds for Suspension or Revocation. 

i. Willful, knowing failure of an owner whose tower was approved after 

November 6, 2000, to comply with the requirement of subsections (D)(5)(a) 

through (d) of this section shall be grounds for suspension or revocation of 

the use. Following report of such failure, the director shall schedule 

a hearing to determine whether the use should be suspended or revoked. 

The hearing shall be processed as a Type III public hearing before 

the planning commission. 

ii. Such conditions shall run with the land and be binding on subsequent 

purchasers of the tower site. 

 
8. Construction Plans must be submitted for all infrastructure per the requirements 

below. 

General Requirements: 
a. All survey monuments on the subject site or that may be subject to 

disturbance within the construction area, or the construction of any off-site 
improvements shall be adequately referenced and protected prior to 
commencement of any construction activity.  If the survey monuments are 
disturbed, moved, relocated or destroyed as a result of any construction, the 
project shall, at its cost, retain the services of a registered professional land 
surveyor in the State of Oregon to restore the monument to its original 
condition and file the necessary surveys as required by Oregon State law.  A 
copy of any recorded survey shall be submitted to Staff. 

b. The applicant shall obtain written approval from the appropriate source to 
construct any utilities or improvements within easement areas. 

The plans must note the following: 

Utilities: 

ATTACHMENT 4

196/332 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=229


 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 23 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

1. Storm Sewer Requirements: 
a. The system shall be reviewed and approved by the City of Newberg Public 

Works Department prior to issuance of Building Permits for the 
development. 

b. Stormwater Report:  If net new impervious area is less than 500 sqft, submit 
a memo summarizing the impervious area surface calculations, including a 
description of pervious materials proposed to be installed.  If net new 
impervious area is more than 500sqft, submit a final engineer's storm water 
report per the City of Newberg Engineering Design Standards.  All onsite 
storm drain and detention/water quality facilities to be private and 
maintained by private property owner with storm water maintenance 
agreement.   

c. Stormwater SDC’s – In accordance with Newberg Municipal Code, this design 
review does increase the impacts to the public improvement facility and is 
therefore not exempt from stormwater SDC charges. 

2. Streets: 
a. Developer shall be responsible for the repair and replacement of any off-

site city infrastructure, including streets, which are damaged by 
construction activities. 
 

9. Grading: Obtain an erosion control permit and install, operate and maintain adequate 
erosion control measures in conformance with the standards adopted by the City of 
Newberg during the construction of any public/private utility and building 
improvements until such time as approved permanent vegetative materials have been 
installed.   

B. THE FOLLOWING MUST BE ACCOMPLISHED PRIOR TO OCCUPANCY 

1. All conditions noted above must be completed prior to occupancy. 

2. Fire Department Requirements:  This project is subject to compliance with all Fire 
Department standards relating to access and fire protection.  

3. Design Review Conditions:  Contact the Planning Division (503-537-1240) to verify that 
all design review conditions have been completed. 

4. Site Inspection:  Contact the Building Division (503-537-1240) for Building, Mechanical, 
and Plumbing final inspections.  Contact the Fire Department (503-537-1260) for Fire 
Safety final inspections.  Contact Yamhill County (503-538-7302) for electrical final 
inspections.  Contact the Planning Division (503-537-1240) for landscaping final 
inspections.  

C. DEVELOPMENT NOTES 

ATTACHMENT 4

197/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 24 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

1. Systems development charges (SDCs) will be collected when building permits are issued. 
For questions regarding SDCs please refer to the city fee packet and contact the 
Engineering Division. 

ATTACHMENT 4

198/332 



 
 "Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"  Page 25 

Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.DR\Type 2 DR\2015\Cell tower DR2-15-003.VAR-15-001\Decision - DR2-15-003 VAR-15-001 Verizon cell tower final.doc 

Attachment 1:  Aerial Photo 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 4

199/332 




